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abrdn European Logistics Income plc (the "Company")

FULL YEAR RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Differentiated strategy underpinned by high indexation and occupier demand delivers portfolio
valuation resilience, with platform in place to capture long-term income growth

abrdn European Logistics Income plc, the Continental European investor in modern warehouses, which is managed by
abrdn, announces its full yearresults for the yearto 31 December 2022.

Resilient NAV performance despite highly volatile macroeconomic backdrop; maintained dividend supported by low-cost, fixed debt:
e Netassetvalue perordinaryshare decreased by 7.75% to €1.19 (31 December 2021: €1.29), primarily driven by
market-wide outward yield movements as a resultof rising interest rates

e |FRS NAV total return of -3.8% (31 December 2022: 12.4%)

e EPRAnettangible assets €1.25 (31 December 2021: €1.36)

e |FRS earnings pershare of -4.51cents (31 December 2021: 15.43 cents)

e Loanto Value of 34% at 31 December (31 December 2021 25.1%)

e Low all-in cost of fixed term debt of 2.01%, with no major refinancings due until mid-2025
e Dividend distributions of 5.64 euro cents pershare paid in respect of the year

e  Attractive WAULT of 8.9 years (31 December 2021: 8 years) and inflation linked lease profile, with 65% of current
portfolio income subject to full indexation

e Af£38million (€45.6 million) equityissuance completed in February 2022

Increased exposure to high growth urban logistics sub sector and indexation-driven, active management initiatives to support occupancy
and earnings growth optimisation
e Strongrentcollection

e Portfolio value increased 14% to €759 million (31 December 2021: €666 million) reflecting new acquisitions; the like-
for-like portfolio valuation decreased by 4%, mainly as a result of the outward yield movement witnessed in Q4

e State of the art Amazon-leased warehouse and parking deck completed at Gavilanes, Madrid ata cost of €80.3
million on a 25 yearlease

e Fourfurtheracquisitions completed for a total net consideration of €44.7 million, taking the portfolio to 27 assets
across five countries and increasing the portfolio weighting towards high growth urban logistics sector to 51%

e Annualised passing rentincreased by 18% to €34.7 million (31 December 2021: €29.4 million)
. Income enhancing asset managementsuccesses including:

o Five yearlease agreed with ADER on 7,375 sqm of previouslyvacant space at Madrid Phase Il, earlier than
forecastand ahead of rental estimate

o Completion of Madrid Phase IV Amazon hub
o Deliveryof highlysustainable warehouse extension at Waddinxveen, in the Netherlands

O Post-period, a new 9.5 yearlease with Dachser France atits La Creche, Niort, property, 3% ahead of previous
annual rent payable

e Furtherimprovementin the Company's Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark ('GRESB') score to 86/100,
whilst maintaining its high Green Starrating with 4 out of a maximum of 5 stars

Tony Roper, Chairman, abrdn European Logistics Income, commented:

"Our core focus over the coming months will be on optimising the current portfolio in terms of both occupancy and earnings
growth. We retain a strong conviction in our investment strategy and during this period of inflationary pressure, the
Company's indexation characteristics should provide a level of inflation protection alongside our attractive dividend yield.
Furthermore, we believe a combination of the portfolio valuation resilience versus other commercial real estate funds and
the growth prospects in our key markets versus the UK provides an attractive differentiator forinvestors."

Troels Andersen, Lead Fund Manager, abrdn European Logistics Income, added: "Continental European logistics real estate is well
placed to navigate the current high inflationary environment due to its CPl indexation characteristics and robust market
fundamentals. Backed by the tailwinds of record-low vacancies and structural demand drivers, rental growth is expected to
retain its momentum in most European logistics hotspots.

"While lingering economic, political, and financial market uncertainties may disrupt investment trends and present select
occupational challenges in the short-term, the favourable underlying trends including growing e-commerce penetration,
onshoring and supply chain reconfiguration/ modernisation should remain importantdrivers for the sector."

-Ends-
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GarylJones
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Financial Highlights as at 31 December 2022

Net asset value total return
2021: 12.4%

(3.8%

Share price

total return
2021: 12.46%

(38.3%

Ongoing Charges:
2021: 1.3%

1.3%

Number of

assets
2021: 23

Average building size (sqm)

2021: 23,403

21,374

1 Alternative Performance Measure

Overview

Chairman's Statement

DearShareholder,

IFRS Net Asset Value
(€'000)

2021: 487,505

489,977

(Discount)/Premium to

Net Asset Value:
2021: 7.8%

(35.0%)
IFRS Earnings Per Share
2021: 15.43¢

(4.51¢)

Average lease length in years

(excl breaks)
2021: 8.0

8.9

All-in fixed interest rate

2021: 1.43%

2.01%

IFRS Net Asset Value per
share (€):

2021: 1.29

1.19
Ordinary dividend
per share

2021: 5.64¢

5.64¢

Portfolio valuation (€'000)
2021: 666,008

758,719

Loan-To-Value:
(%9

2021: 25.1%

34.0%

EPRA Net Tangible Assets
per share (€)1

2021: 1.36

1.25

| am pleased to present to you the Company's fifth Annual Reportin respect of the yearended 31 December 2022. | should
also like to take this opportunity to formally welcome ournew lead manager, Troels Andersen, who joined us backin
October. With the support of the wider European team, there has been a seamless transition with Troels, who is based in
Copenhagen, picking up the reins and quickly getting up to speed with our diversified European property portfolio.

Following on from the Company's strong financial and operational performance delivered in 2021, as key structural drivers
boosted the logistics sectorand helped to delivera double digitnetassetvalue ("NAV") total return, 2022 was
characterised by unpredictable political events, an economicslowdown and surging inflation.

As the COVID pandemiceased, focus quickly turned to a global cost of living crisis driven by high inflation. The warin
Ukraine also had a significantimpactas central banks and governments tried to react to the conflicting pressures of high
inflation, rising interestrates, slowing economies and the escalating cost of living. A risk-off theme led to valuations
initially being trimmed and then falling more materially as investors stood back to take stock and bank base rates rose.

The impacton debt costs led to a declining flow of capital into real estate generallyand softening yields. We have not
been immune to negative sentiment despite robust occupierdemand as our discountto netassetvalue widened in a

relatively short period of time.

With Eurozone inflation peaking in October 2022 at 10.6%, a final interestrate hike in December from the European Central
Bank marked a year of disruption for financial markets and real estate investors. However, recent data indicates that
headline inflation has peaked as energy-driven increases are beginning to slow. According to Capital Economics, core
interestrates are expected to rise throughout H1 2023 to peak at 3.5% by mid-year, providing more certainty for investors to
manage cash flows, before falling again into 2024.

We are highlyaware of the broader economicchallenges ahead forthe remainder of 2023 that could have a negative impact
on valuations. However, we believe that we are well placed in terms of the resilience of ourincreasingly diversified
portfolio, our fixed rate debtand the future earnings growth driven by predominantly long-term indexed leases.

The 8.9 year portfolio WAULT and CPl indexation of the majority of ourtenantleases provides for this durability of income
and a strong degree of inflation protection which should partlyameliorate anydecline in valuations.

A5% of nurannual incame ic cuhiect to uncanned CPlindexation and the maiaritv of the remainder cuhiect to ranned
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indexation. Rentremains a small element of our occupiers' overheads which can make iteasierforthem to absorb
increased lease costs.
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Occupational demand has remained resilient for industrial property, as companies continued to adapt to changes in
retail habits, as well as a growing need to strengthen supplychains given the previous three years of disruptions. Supply
levels of new logistics warehousing remain constrained with limited new development due to increased interestrates
and construction costs, planning challenges and competition from alternative uses, so further rental growth is likely
even as economies have weakened.

Prime logistics in Germany, Netherlands, France and Spain is seeing historically low vacancy rates and, with speculative
development expected to decline, we believe that vacancy rates will remain tight, which will keep upward pressure on
rents.

The segment of the marketthat we operate in has seen particularly fast growth, which manybelieve is a permanent shift
considering underlying fundamentals. The acquisitions made during the year helped to further diversify the portfolio
and to reinforce a roster of high-quality tenants, including Amazon. The Company's portfolio is 51% weighted by value to
the high-growth, urban logistics sector, the part of the market forecast to see the greatest capital and rental growth over
the medium to long-term.

Overview

As at 31 December 2022, the Company's property portfolio consisted of 27 assets located across five European countries and
was independentlyvalued at €759 million (£666 million). The like-for-like portfolio valuation was resilient throughout most
of the year when compared to other parts of the commercial real estate market, with a 6% decrease witnessed in Q4, as a
result of the market-wide outward yield movements caused byrising interest rates as mentioned above.

In August, the Companyannounced the acquisition of two urban logistics properties, in Bordeauxand Niort, France. The
aggregate purchase price of €23 million reflected a netinitial yield ('NIY') of 4.0%. Both are leased to logistics operator
Dachserintelligent Logistics, the German-owned global third party logistics provider, operating as Dachser France.

In October, the Companyannounced the €9.3 million acquisition of an urban logistics warehouse in Dijon, France, also
leased to Dachser, representing a 4.2% NIY. In October, the Companyalso acquired a warehouse in Horst, the Netherlands,
for€12.2 million via a sale and leaseback deal with Limax, a producer, packagerand distributor of soft fruits and
mushrooms. The tenantcritical asset with cold storage lies in an area known forits agrifood and agricultural businesses.

During the year, the Investment Managerundertook a number of asset managementinitiatives in Lodz and Warsaw as it
continues to capture the portfolio's indexation characteristics. We agreed a new 5 yearlease with ADER at Unit 3, part of
Phase Il of the Gavilanes site in Madrid. ADER provides distribution services to companies in the freight and logistics
sector. The annual contracted rent of almost €470,000 per annum is fully CPl indexed and was in line with expectations. We
also completed the 2,500 sqm extension with ourtenant Combilo in Waddinxveen. The lease runs concurrent with the
original, with 11 years remaining, and generates additional rent of c. €250,000 per annum, reflecting a yield of 5%. The
extension complies with the latest energy neutrality standards in the Netherlands and includes 16 rooftop solar panels,
resulting in an A+++ energyrating.

Post the year end, the Companyagreed a new 9.5 yearlease with Dachser France atits La Creche, Niort, property, 3% ahead
of previous annual rent payable and significantlyahead of ERV, with full French ILAT indexation. Negotiations are in train
inrelation to Avignon and Ede re-gears and furtherinformation will be released shortly. The Company's Meung-sur-Loire
assetremained vacantatyearend with the Investment Manager continuing to work hard with its locally based transaction
managers and brokers to find a suitable tenant. Discussions are currently underway around potential short-term interest
which would boostincome. The Board has also noted the intentions of electric van manufacturer Arrival to consolidate
operations in the US. Negotiations have commenced around the two units that Arrival leases in Madrid. We are optimistic
thata suitable agreement will be reached allowing the Company to re-let these very well located buildings and reduce
anypotential fora decrease in income.

In addition to the above, the Investment Manageris in negotiations over the potential sale of one of ourassets, ator
around current valuation. The Company will announce further details on this when, and if, such sale concludes.

As | have previouslystated, ourinvestment case is enhanced by the competitive advantage provided through the Investment
Manager's relationships and market knowledge with its local teams based in key markets in Europe, enabling it to
originate and then execute on attractive acquisitions, as well as leveraging this insight to improve the portfolio
performance. The Investment Manager has builta portfolio of assets diversified by both geographyand tenantin
established distribution hubs and within close proximity of cities with substantial labour pools and excellenttransport
links. These critical factors should ensure thatthe Company's assets will remain attractive to tenants, underpinning longer
term valuations. Further details on the composition of the portfolio and lease renewals are provided in the Investment
Manager's Report that follows.

Results

As at 31 December 2022 the audited Net Asset Value ("NAV") per Share was €1.19 (GBp - 105.4p), a decrease of 7.75%
compared with the NAV per Share of €1.29 (GBp - 108.5p) at 31 December 2021. With the interim dividends declared, this
reflected a NAV total return of -3.8% for the yearin euro terms (+1.7% in sterling calculated on a quarterly basis).

The closing Ordinary Share price at 31 December 2022 was 68.5p (31 December 2021 - 117.0p), representing a discount to NAV
per Share of 35.0%. The Board monitors the share price discountregularlyand whilstshare buybacks maynotbe a panacea
forthe impact of underlying economicissues that have afflicted the widerreal estate sector, the Board is aware that
shareholders approved theiruse atthe mostrecent AGM in 2022. Available cash could be used for this where deemed
appropriate.

Dividends

First, second and third interim dividends in respect of the yearended 31 December 2022 of 1.41 euro cents per Ordinary
Share were paid to Shareholders on 24 June 2022, 23 September 2022 and 30 December 2022. These equated to 1.19 pence,
1.20 pence and 1.20 pence respectively.

On 17 February 2023, the Board declared a fourth interim dividend of 1.41 euro cents per Ordinary Share (equivalent to
1.20p), which was paid to Shareholders on 24 March 2023, making a total of 5.64 euro cents paid in respect of the financial
yearunderreview. The equivalentsterling rate paid was 4.79p per Share (2021 - 4.84p per Share).

The Company continues to payquarterlyinterim dividends in line with its policy with dividends declared in respect of the
quarters ending on 31 March, 30 June, 30 Septemberand 31 December. Shareholders may elect through the registrar to
receive dividend payments in Euros instead of Sterling. Once a Shareholder has elected to receive dividends in Euros, then
all future dividends will be paid in Euros unless the Shareholder elects to switch back to Sterling payments. The dividend
targetand anydividend payment may be made up of both dividend income and income which is designated as an interest
distribution for UK tax purposes and therefore subject to the interest streaming regime applicable to investment trusts.

Further details on this breakdown can be found under'Results' below (page 21 of the published Annual Reportand
financial statements forthe yearended 31 December 2022) and are reflected within the Company's dividend
announcements.

Financing
Having witnessed the recent material interest rate fluctuations across the continent, | am pleased to saythatthe
Companv's debt. provided bvour Euronean partner banks. remains fixed in nature and secured on certain assets or grouns



of assets within the portfolio. These non-recourse loans range in maturities between 2.5and 7.0 years with all-in interest
rates ranging between 1.1% and 3.0% perannum. Our earliest re-financings are notscheduled until June 2025.

During the year fixed term loans totalling €108.6 million were arranged and drawn with ING Spain, secured against the
assets in Gavilanes, Madrid.

The Company maintains an uncommitted masterloan facility ("Facility") with Investec Bank plc for €70 million, which is
currently undrawn. Under this Facility, the Company may make requests for drawdowns atselected short-duration tenors,
as and when required, to fund acquisitions or for other liquidity requirements and this was used to good effect during
the purchase of the Gavilanes assets. Within the Facility, Investecalso makes available a £3.3 million committed
revolving credit facility which is carved out of the total €70 million limit of the Facility.

The year-end gearing level was 34.0% (2021 - 25.1%) with an average all-in interest rate of 2.06% on the total fixed term debt
arrangements of €270.3 million.

ESG and Asset Management

The Investment Manager continues to seek to improve the sustainability credentials of the portfolio and the results of the
2022 GRESB ('Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark') survey saw the Company's portfolio achieve a score of 86/100,
representing continued improvementand an uplift on its 2021 GRESB survey score of 84/100. Italso compares favourably
versus the 79/100 average peerscore and 74/100 overall average 2022 GRESB score.

The Company has maintained its high rating with 4 out of a maximum 5stars and outperformed the benchmark average
score in most categories. The latest GRESB scoring recognises the fundamental importance the Investment Manager places
on sustainabilitywhen acquiring and subsequently enhancing the Company's portfolio. The improved performance score
rewards the progress made with regards to environmental, social and governance ("ESG") factors. These include solar panel
projectinitiatives, the tenantsatisfaction survey, light sustainability audits and nearly 100% data collection across the
portfolio linked to Envizi sustainable reporting software which is used to analyse energy consumption. The Investment
Manager obtains volumetricusage data on energy use, waste disposal and water consumption for reporting and possible
costsavings. This data collection is useful fortenants enabling them to analyse areas where theymaybe able to reduce
emissions, become more efficientand pare costs. In addition, all buildings have LED lighting and the Investment Manager
continues with plans to further enhance ESG credentials going forward where possible.

Fuelled byincreasing regulation, ESG matters will continue to dominate the publicand political sphere as stakeholders'
concerns fortransparency and disclosure are enhanced. This includes our tenants, forwhom ESG obligations are an
increasing priority. Considering environmental compliance, resource use, social impactand governance is an integral part
of a property acquisition and managementapproach. The tightening of ESG regulation across Europe and the current hikes
ininterest rates make the transformation into higherrated assets important but, with increased legislation and mandatory
disclosures increasing, the risk associated with 'stranded assets' within real estate portfolios will grow. We are more
likely to see investors seeking to avoid assets atrisk of stranding and even incurring penalties for failing to comply with
tightening legislation. Our portfolio of relatively newer assets stands us in good stead in this regard.

ESG is embedded within the Investment Manager's investment process and although many of ourassets are recently built,
a programme continues to identify areas where improvements can be made.

Sustainabilityis fundamental to our ability to create long-term value forall stakeholders and the Investment Manager has
defined and continues to implementa strategy to support oursustainability targets for positive environmental and socio-
economicimpacts. The ESG section provides furtherclarity on our processes, including our further thoughts on establishing
a netzero carbon pathway.

Governance
The Companyis a member of the Association of Investment Companies and seeks to follow best practice regarding
appropriate disclosure.

In accordance with good governance, the Directors offered to meet with a number of ourlargershareholders during the year
to heartheirviews on the Companyand its performance. Directors are available to meet with investors to discuss the
Companyin more detail atthe AGM and may be contacted through the Company Secretaryatall othertimes.

The Board looks to undertake short annual site visits to view the properties owned, meet with tenants where possible
and members of local staff and advisers of the Investment Manager. During the year the Board was pleased to visit the
Gavilanes and Coslada, Madrid, assets helping to better understand the in-demand location, site layouts and meeting
with abrdn's local Madrid-based real estate team which has a focus on managing these assets for us.

Following best practice, the whole Board is standing for re-election at the forthcoming AGM and further details on each
Director may be found on pages 72 and 73 of the published Annual Reportand financial statements for the yearended 31
December 2022.

Annual General Meeting
The Company's Annual General Meeting will be held in London on Monday, 12 June 2023 at 11:30am at Wallacespace, 15
Artillery Lane. London, E1 7HA.

The formal Notice of AGM maybe found on page 169 of the published Annual Reportand financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Outlook

The portfolio is well diversified by property, tenantand geography, and following the acquisitions completed in the
yearis 51% weighted towards urban logistics warehouses. 18 of the 27 assets have been constructed since 2018. Our
tenant base is diversified across 51 tenants, consisting predominantly of third-party logistics providers, e-commerce
related businesses and grocery focused vendors. Our tenants' businesses are generally well positioned in areas which
remain essential to the everyday operation of the modern economy.

Rising construction and financing costs and an uncertain economic landscape will likely exacerbate an alreadydelayed
construction pipeline as we expect construction activity to continue to weaken this year, with inflationary pressures being
felt throughout the supply chain.

This lack of new development, which is typically more sustainable, energy-efficient buildings, and the delayin
refurbishment projects transforming older stock will put further pressure on occupiers who are increasingly seeking best-
in-class space, especiallyas corporate ESG strategies increasingly restrict the leasing of buildings thatare not green
certified.

A strong commitment to sustainability, demonstrated by the Company's improved GRESB score, together with the inflation
linked nature of the portfolio's leases which are increasingly flowing through improving income, provides a strong
counterbalance to the yield expansion being witnessed. The Board is mindful that continued yield expansion across the
widercommercial real estate sectorin general could see bank loan covenants become more of a focus, particularlyif we
see occupiers underincreased pressure from the current economic uncertainties and costinflation. The Investment
Manager maintains a dialogue with banks and we retain assets that maybe used forcollateral in such instances.

However, if the indicators suggesting inflation is nearing its peak across the eurozone are borne out, there is likelyto be a
recoveryin values in 2024, especiallyifinterest rates follow consensus forecasts in heading back down towards 2%.
Certainly there is evidence thatinvestors are alreadyvlooking at opportunities once again in the market, and this should



offer more positive momentum laterin the year. Whilst we will continue to screen for new acquisitions, our core focus for
the coming year will be on optimising the current portfolio in terms of both occupancyand earnings growth. We retain a
strong conviction in ourinvestment strategy and during this period of inflationary pressure, the Company's indexation
characteristics should provide a level of inflation protection alongside our attractive dividend yield.

Tony Roper
Chairman
20 April 2023

Strategic Report
Overview of Strategy

The Company
The Companyis a UKinvestment trust with a premium listing on the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange. The
Companyinvests in European logistics real estate to achieve its investment objective noted below.

The Companywas incorporated in England and Wales on 25 October 2017 with registered number 11032222 and launched on
15 December 2017.

Change of Company name

In order to align the Company's name with the name of the Manager's business, which changed to abrdn plcin 2021,
the Company's name was changed to abrdn European Logistics Income plc. This took effect from 1January 2022. The
Company's ticker, ASLI, remained unchanged.

Investment Objective
The Companyaims to provide a regularand attractive level of income return together with the potential for long-term
income and capital growth from investing in high quality European logistics real estate.

Investment Policy

The Companyaims to deliver the investment objective through investmentin, and active asset management of, a
diversified portfolio of logistics real estate assets in Europe. The Company will investin a portfolio of single and multi-let
assets diversified by both geographyand tenantthroughout Europe, predominantly targeting well-located assets at
established distribution hubs and within population centres. In particular, the Investment Manager will seek to identify
assets benefiting from long-term, index-linked, leases as well as those which may benefit from structural change, and will
take into account several factors, including but not limited to:

e the property characteristics and whethertheyare appropriate for the location (such as technical quality, ESG
credentials, scale, configuration, layout, transportation links, power supply, data connectivity, manoeuvrability,
layout flexibility, and overall operational efficiencies);

e the location and its role within European logistics (city, regional, national orinternational distribution), key
fundamentals supporting logistics activity within the micro location such as proximity to airport, port, transport
nodes, multimodal transportinfrastructure, established warehousing hubs, transport corridors, population
centres, labour availabilityand market dynamics such as supply (of both land and existing stock), vacancy rate and
planned infrastructure upgrades;

e the terms of the lease(s) focusing on duration, inflation-linked terms, ESG criteria, level of passing rentrelative to
marketrent, the basis forrentreviews, and the potential for capturing growth in marketrental income;

e the strength of the tenant's financial covenant;

e the business model of the tenantand theircommitmentto the assetboth in terms of capital expenditure and the
role it plays in their operations; and

e the potential to implementactive asset managementinitiatives to add value over the holding period.

The Company will invest either directly or through holdings in special purpose vehicles, partnerships, or other structures.
The Company mayinvestin forward commitments when the Investment Manager believes thatto do so would enhance risk
adjusted returns for Shareholders and/orsecure an assetatan attractive yield. The Company's active asset management
activities are expected to focus on adding value through:

negotiating orrenegotiating leases to increase/secure rental income: managing vacancies;

undertaking refurbishments to maintain liquidity;

managing redevelopments as assets approach obsolescence;

adding solarpanels to reduce carbon emissions and generate additional income streams;

where appropriate, extending existing on-site buildings or developing adjacent plots;

refurbishmentand redevelopment activity will, amongst other things, focus on: enhancing occupier wellbeing;
operational efficiencies; energy efficiency;

e reducing carbon emissions; and elevating technological provision as well as increasing lettable area.

The Company's active management of debt will effectively manage costs and risk to enhance investment returns.

Diversification of Risk

The Companywill atall times investand manage its assets in a manner which is consistent with the spreading of
investmentrisk. The following investment limits and restrictions will applyto the Companyand its business which, where
appropriate, will be measured atthe time of investment:

the Company will onlyinvestin assets located in Europe;

no more than 50 per cent. of Gross Assets will be concentrated in a single country;

nosingle asset mayrepresent more than 20 per cent. of Gross Assets;

forward commitments will be wholly or predominantly pre-let and/or have the benefit of a rental guarantee and

the Company's overall exposure to forward commitments and development activity will be limited to 20 per cent. of

Gross Assets;

the Company's maximum exposure to anysingle developer will be limited to 20 per cent. of Gross Assets;

e the Companywill notinvestin otherclosed-ended investment companies;

e the Companywill predominantlyinvestin assets with tenants which have been classified by the Investment
Manager's investment process, as having strong financial covenants. However, the Company may, on an exceptional
basis,investin an assetwith a tenantwith a lower financial covenantstrength (and/or with a shortlease term)
where the Investment Manager believes thatthe assetcan be leased on a longerterm tenancyto a tenant with
strong financial covenants within a reasonable time period; and

e nosingle tenantwill represent more than 20 per cent. of the Company's annual gross income measured

annually.

The Company will notbe required to dispose of anyassetorto rebalance the Portfolio as a result of a change in the
respective valuations of its assets.



The Companyintends to conductits affairs so as to continue to qualifyas an investment trust for the purposes of section
1158 and 1159 (and regulations made thereunder) of the Corporation Tax Act 2010.

Borrowing and Gearing

The Company uses gearing with the objective of improving shareholderreturns. Debtis typically nonrecourse and secured
againstindividual assets or groups of assets with or without a charge overthese assets, depending on the optimal
structure forthe Companyand having consideration to key metrics including lender diversity, cost of debt, debt type and
maturity profiles.

The aggregate borrowings are always subject to an absolute maximum, calculated atthe time of drawdown for a property
purchase, of 50 per cent. of Gross Assets. Where borrowings are secured againsta group of assets, such group of assets will
not exceed 25 per cent. of Gross Assets in order to ensure thatinvestmentrisk remains suitably spread.

The Board has established gearing guidelines for the Alternative Investment Fund Manager ("AIFM") in order to
maintain an appropriate level and structure of gearing within the parameters setoutabove. Underthese guidelines,
aggregate assetlevel gearing will sit, as determined by the Board, atoraround 35 percent of Gross Assets. This level
may fluctuate as and when new assets are acquired until longer term funding has been established or whilst short-term
asset managementinitiatives are being undertaken.

The Board will keep the level of borrowings underreview. In the event of a breach of the investment guidelines and
restrictions set outabove, the AIFM will inform the Board upon becoming aware of the same, and if the Board considers
the breach to be material, notification will be made to a Regulatory Information Service and the AIFM will look to resolve
the breach with the agreement of the Board. The Directors may require thatthe Company's assets are managed with the
objective of bringing borrowings within the appropriate limit while taking due account of the interests of shareholders.
Accordingly, corrective measures maynot have to be taken immediatelyif this would be detrimental to shareholders'
interests.

Any material change to the Company's investment policy set out above will require the approval of shareholders by way of
an ordinaryresolution ata general meeting and the approval of the Financial Conduct Authority. Non-material changes to
the investment policy may be approved by the Board.

Comparative Index
The Companydoes not have a benchmark.

Duration

Although the Company does not have a fixed life, underthe Company's articles of association the Directors are required
to propose an ordinary resolution for the continuation of the Companyatthe Annual General Meeting to be held in 2024
and then every third year thereafter.

Key Performance Indicators (KPls)

The Board uses a number of financial performance measures to assess the Company's success in achieving its objective and
to determine the progress of the Companyin pursuingits Investment Policy. The main KPIs identified by the Board in
relation to the Company, which are considered at each Board meeting, are as follows:

KPI Description

NAV Total Return® The Board considers the NAV total return to be the bestindicator of performance over time and
is therefore the main indicator of performance used by the Board. Performance for the yearand
since inception is setouton page 21 of the published Annual Reportand financial statements
forthe yearended 31 December 2022.

The Companyis targeting, foran investorin the Companyatlaunch, a total NAV return of 7.5
percent. perannum (in € terms).

Share Price (ona The Board also monitors the price at which the Company's shares trade on a total return basis
total return overtime. A graph showing the share price performance is shown on page 22 of the published
basis)l Annual Reportand financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The premium/(discount) relative to the NAV per share represented by the share price is
monitored by the Board. A graph showing the share price (discount)/premium relative to the
NAV is shown on page 22 of the published Annual Reportand financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Premium/ (Discoum:)1

Dividends per The Board's aim is to paya regular quarterly dividend enabling shareholders to relyon a

Share consistent stream of income. Dividends paid are set out on page 21 of the published Annual
Reportand financial statements forthe yearended 31 December 2022. The Company is
targeting, foran investorin the Companyatlaunch, an annual dividend yield of 5.0 per cent.
per Ordinary Share (in € terms).

Ongoing Charges Ratio The OCR is the ratio of expenses as a percentage of average dailyshareholders' funds

" ml calculated in accordance with the industry standard. The Board reviews the OCR regularly as

("OCR") h A Al . S
part of its review of all expenses. The aim is to ensure thatthe Companyremains competitive
andis able to deliveron its yield target to Shareholders. The Company's OCR is disclosed on
page 21 of the published Annual Reportand financial statements for the yearended 31
December 2022.

1
Alternative Performance Measure - see glossary on pages 150 to 154 of the published Annual Report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Manager

Underthe terms of the Management Agreement, the Company has appointed abrdn Fund Managers Limited as the
Company's alternative investment fund manager ("AIFM") for the purposes of the AIFM Rules. The AIFM has delegated
portfolio management to the Danish Branch of abrdn Investments Ireland Limited which acts as Investment Manager.

Pursuant to the terms of the Management Agreement, the AIFM is responsible for portfolio and risk managementon behalf
of the Companyand will carry out the ongoing oversight functions and supervision and ensure compliance with the
applicable requirements of the AIFM Rules. The AIFM and the Investment Manager are both legallyand operationally
independent of the Company.

Dividend Policy

Subject to compliance with all legal requirements the Company pays interim dividends on a quarterly basis. The Company
declares dividends in Euros, butshareholders will receive dividend payments in Sterling unless electing to receive
payments in Euros through the Equiniti Shareview Portfolio website orvia CRESTPay. If applicable, the date on which the
Euro/ Sterling exchange rate is set will be announced atthe time the dividend is declared. Distributions made by the
Company may take the form of eitherdividend income or ""qualifying interestincome" which maybe designated as interest
distributions for UK tax purposes.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Description Mitigating Action

Strategic Risk: Strategic Objectives and Performance e The Company's strategy and obijectives are regularly



-The Company's strategic objectives and
performance, both absolute and relative,
become unattractive to investors leading to a
widening of the discount, potential hostile
shareholderactions and the Board fails to
adaptthe strategyand/orrespond to investor
demand.

Risk has increased over the year

reviewed by the Board to ensure theyremain
appropriate and effective.

The Board receives regular presentations on the
economyand also the property market to identify
structural shifts and threats so thatthe strategycan be
adapted if necessary.

There is regular contact with shareholders both
through the Investment Manager and the broker with
additional direct meetings undertaken by the
Chairman and other Directors. Board reports are
prepared by the Investment Manager detailing
performance, NAV return and share price analysis
versus peers.

Cash flow projections are prepared by the Investment
Managerand reviewed quarterly by the Board.
Shareholder/market reaction to Company
announcements is monitored.

Investment and Asset Management Risk:
Investment Strategy - Poorly judged investment
strategy, regional allocation, use of gearing,
inability to deploycapital and the mis-timing of
disposals and acquisitions, resulting in poor
investmentreturns.

Risk has decreased over the year

abrdn has real estate research and strategy teams
which provide performance forecasts for different
sectors and regions.

There is a team of experienced portfolio

managers who have detailed knowledge of the
markets in which theyoperate.

abrdn has a detailed investment process for both
acquisitions and disposals thatrequire to be signed
off internally before the Board reviews anyfinal
decision.

The Board is very experienced with Directors having a
knowledge of property markets.

There are a number of risks which, if realised, could have a material adverse effect on the Companyand its financial
condition, performance and prospects. The Board has carried out a robustassessment of the principal risks as set out
below, ordered by category of risk, together with a description of the mitigating actions taken by the Board. The Board
confirms thatithas a process in place forregularlyreviewing emerging risks that may affect the Companyin the future. The
Board collectively discusses with the Managerareas where there may be emerging risk themes and maintains a register of
these. Such risks mayinclude, butare notlimited to, future pandemics, cybercrime, and longer term climate change. In the
eventthatan emergingrisk has gained significant weight orimportance, thatrisk is categorised and added to the
Company's risk registerand is monitored accordingly.

The principal risks associated with an investmentin the Company's shares can be found in the Company's latest Prospectus
dated 8 September 2021, published on the Company's website.

The Board is very mindful of ongoing events involving Russia and Ukraine which have caused significant market volatility
across Europe and the World. There has been no discernible impact to date on ourtenants located in Poland and across
the widerregion. The indicators below show how the Board's views on the stated risks have evolved over the lastyear. In
all otherrespects, the Company's principal risks and uncertainties have not changed materiallysince the date of the

Annual Reportand are not expected to change materially for the current financial year.

Investment and Asset Management Risk:
Developing and refurbishing property - Increased
construction costs, construction defects, delays,
contractor failure, lack of development permits,
environmental and third partydamage can all
impact the resulting capital value and income
from investments.

Risk is unchanged over the year

abrdn has experienced investment managers with
extensive development knowledge with in-depth
research undertaken on each
acquisition/development.

Development contracts are negotiated by experienced
teams supported byapproved lawyers.

Due diligence is undertaken on developers including
credit checks and current pipelines.

Construction and risk insurance checked.

Post completion the developeris responsible

for defects and monies are held in escrow fora
period of time after handover.

Investment and Asset Management Risk: Health and
Safety - Failure to identify and mitigate major
health & safetyissues orto react effectivelyto an
eventleading to injury, loss of life, litigation
and anyensuing financial and reputational
impact.

Risk is unchanged over the year

Fornew properties health and safetyis included as a
key part of due diligence.

Asset managers visit buildings on a regular basis.
Property managers are appointed byabrdn to
monitor health & safetyin each building and reports
are made to the asset managers on a monthly basis.
Asset managers visiteach building atleast

twice a year. Tenants are responsible for day to
dayoperations of the properties.

Investment and Asset Management Risk:
Environment - Properties could be negatively
impacted by hazardous materials (forexample
asbestos orother ground contamination) oran
extreme environmental event (e.g. flooding) or
the tenants' own operating activities could
create environmental damage. Failure to
achieve environmental targets could adversely
affect the Company's reputation and resultin
penalties and increased costs and reduced
investor demand. Legislative changes relating
to sustainability could affect the viability of
asset managementinitiatives.

Risk is unchanged over the year

The Investment Manager undertakes in depth
research on each propertyacquisition with
environmental surveys and considers its
impacton the environmentand local
communities.

The Investment Manager has adopted a
thorough environmental policy which is applied
to all properties in the portfolio.

Experienced advisers on environmental, social and
governance matters are consulted both internally
(within the Investment Manager) and externally
where required.

The Investment Managerin conjunction with
specialistadvisers continues to work on a net zero
emissions roadmap forthe Company



Financial Risks: Macroeconomic -

Macroeconomic changes (e.g. levels of GDP,
employment, inflation, interest rate and FX
movements), political changes (e.g. new
legislation) or structural changes (e.g. new
technology or demographics) negatively impact
commercial propertyvalues and the underlying
businesses of tenants (marketrisk and credit
risk). Falls in the value of investments could
resultin breaches of loan covenants and
solvencyissues. Interestrate increases from
historical lows will impact strategyif
unchanged when re-financings are required.
Pressure on overall net revenue returns.

Risk has increased over the year

abrdn research teams take into account
macroeconomic conditions when collating forecasts.
This research is fed into Investment Manager
decisions on purchases/sales and regional
allocations.

The portfolio is EU based and diversified across a
number of different countries and also has a
diverse tenant base seeking to minimise risk
concentration.

There is a wide range of lease expiry dates within the
portfolio in order to minimise re-letting risk.

The Company has no exposure to speculative
development

and forward funding is onlyundertaken where the
developmentis predominantly pre-let.

Rigorous portfolio reviews are undertaken by the
Investment Managerand presented to the Board on
a regularbasis.

Annual asset managementplans are developed for
each propertyand individual investment decisions
are subject to robustrisk versus return evaluation and
approval.

Most leases are indexed to provide increases in line
with movements in inflation and leverage is fixed to
reduce the impact of interestrate rises.

Financial Risks: Gearing - Gearing risk - an
inappropriate level of gearing, magnifying
investmentlosses in a declining market, could
resultin breaches of loan covenants and
threaten the Company's liquidity and solvency.
An inability to secure adequate borrowing with
appropriate tenorand competitive rates could
also negativelyimpact the Company. Earliest
Companyre-financing required in 2025 but
current conditions expected to impact banks'
willingness to lend orseek tighter covenants.

Risk is unchanged over the year

Regular covenantreporting to banks is
undertaken as required.

The gearing targetis setatan indicative 35% asset
level limitand an absolute Company limit of 50%.

The Company's diversified European logistics
portfolio, underpinned byits tenant base, should
provide sufficientvalue and income in a challenging
marketto meet the Company's future liabilities.

The portfolio attracted competitive terms and
interestrates from lenders for the Company's fixed
term loan facilities. The Investment Manager has
relationships with multiple funders and wide
access to different sources of funding on both a
fixed and variable basis.

Financial modelling is undertaken and stress tested
annuallyas part of the Company's viability
assessmentand whenever new debt facilities are
being considered.

Loan covenants are continually monitored and
reported to the Board on a quarterly basis and would
also be reviewed as part of the disposal process of
anysecured property.

Financial Risks: Liquidity Risk and FX Risk - The
inability to dispose of propertyassets in
orderto meetfinancial commitments of the
Companyorobtain funds when required for
assetacquisition or payment of expenses or
dividends. Movements in foreign exchange
and interestrates or other external events
could affect the ability of the Company to
payits dividends. Yield expansion
witnessed as valuations impacted by
global economicconcerns.

Risk has increased over the year

The diversified portfolio is geared towards an
attractive sector. A cash buffer is maintained and an
overdraft facilityis currentlyin place.

Investmentis focused on mid-sized properties which
is considered the more liquid part of the sector.

The assets of the Companyare denominated in a non-
sterling currency, predominantly the Euro. No currency
hedgingis planned for the capital, but the Board
periodically reviews the hedging of dividend
payments having regard to availabilityand cost.

Financial Risks: Credit Risk - Credit Risk - the risk
thatthe counterparty will be unable or
unwilling to meeta commitment entered into
by the Group:failure of a tenantto payrentor
failure of a deposit taker, future lenderora
current exchange rate swap counterparty.

Risk is unchanged over the year

The property portfolio has a balanced mix of
investment grade tenants and reflects diversity across
business sectors. Rigorous due diligence is
performed on all prospective tenants and their
financial performance continues to be monitored
during their lease.

Rent collection from tenants is closely monitored so
thatearlywarning signs might be detected.

Deposits are spread across various abrdn approved
banks and AAA rated liquidity funds.

Financial Risks: Insufficient Income

Generation - Insufficientincome generation due
to macro-economic factors, and/or due to
inadequate asset managementresultingin
long voids orrentarrears orinsufficient return
on cash; dividend cover falls to a level whereby
the dividend needs to be cutand/or the
Companybecomes unattractive to investors.
Level of ongoing charges becomes excessive.

Risk has increased over the year

The Investment Manager seeks a good mix of tenants
in properties. Areview of tenantrisk and profile is
undertaken using, forexample, the Dun & Bradstreet
Failure Scoring method and tenant covenants are
thoroughly considered before a lease is granted.

The abrdn team consists of asset managers on the
ground who undertake asset managementreviews
and implementation and there is a detailed
approval process within abrdn for lettings.

Atregular Board meetings forecast dividend
coveris considered. There is regular contact
with the brokerand shareholders to ascertain,
where possible, views on dividend cover.

Regulatory Risks: Compliance - The regulatory, legal
and tax environmentin which the Company's
assets are located is subject to change and could
lead to a sub-optimal corporate structure and

The Companyhas an experienced Company Secretary
and engages lawyers who will advise on changes
once anynew proposals are published. There is
regular contact with taxadvisers in relation to tax



resultin increased tax charges or penalties.

! ; Sl . computations and transfer pricing. Directors have
Failure to comply with existing or new regulation. P P g

access to updates on relevantregulatory changes

Risk is unchanged over the year through the Company's professional advisers.

e The highestcorporate governance standards are
required from all key service providers and their
performance is reviewed annually by the
Management Engagement Committee.

Operational Risks: Service Providers - Poor e abrdn has an experienced Investment Managerand
performance/inadequate procedures atservice Asset Management Team.
providers leads to error, fraud, noncompliance e The Companyhas engaged an experienced registrar:

with contractual agreements and/or with

X ¢ - Equiniti is a reputable worldwide organisation.
relevantlegislation or the production of

inaccurate orinsufficientinformation for the e All service providers have a strong control culture that
Company (NAV, Board Reports, Regulatory is regularlymonitored.

Reporting) orloss of regulatoryauthorisation. e abrdn aims to meetall service providers once a year
Key service providers include the AIFM, and the Management Engagement Committee
Company Secretary, the Depositary, the reviews all majorservice providers annually.
Custodian, the managing agents, lending e The Companyhas the ability to terminate contracts.

banks and the Company's Registrar.

Risk is unchanged over the year

Operational Risks: Business continuity - e abrdn has a detailed business continuity planin
Business continuity risk to any of the Company's place with a separate alternative working office if
service providers or properties, following a required and the ability for the majority of its
catastrophic event e.g. pandemic, terrorist attack, workforce to work from home.

cyberattack, power disruptions or civil unrest, e abrdn has a dedicated Chief Information Security

leading to disruption of service, loss of data etc. Officer who leads the Chief Information Security

Office covering the following functions: Security
Operations & Delivery,

e Security Strategy, Architecture &
Engineering, Data Governance & Privacy,
Business Resilience, Governance & Risk,
Security & IT.

e Properties within the portfolio are all insured.

Risk is unchanged over the year

e The ITenvironment of service providers is reviewed as
part of the initial appointmentand on an ongoing
basis.

Promoting the Company

The Board recognises the importance of promoting the Company to prospective investors both forimproving liquidity
and enhancing the value and rating of the Company's shares. The Board believes an effective way to achieve this is
through subscription to, and participation in, the promotional programme run by abrdn on behalf of a number of
investment trusts underits management. The Company's financial contribution to the programme is matched by
abrdn.abrdn's marketing team reports quarterly to the Board giving analysis of the promotional activities as well as
updates on the shareholderregisterand anychanges in the make up of thatregister.

The purpose of the programme is both to communicate effectively with existing shareholders and to gain new
shareholders with the aim of improving liquidityand enhancing the value and rating of the Company's shares.
Communicating the long-term attractions of the Companyis keyand therefore the Companyalso supports abrdn's
investor relations programme which involves regional roadshows, promotional and publicrelations campaigns.

Board Diversity

The Board recognises the importance of having a range of skilled, experienced individuals with the right knowledge
represented on the Board in order to allow the Board to fulfil its obligations. The Board also recognises the benefits
and is supportive of the principle of diversityin its recruitment of new Board members. The Board will notdisplayany
bias forage, gender, race, sexual orientation, religion, ethnicor national origins, ordisability in considering the
appointment of its Directors. The Board will continue to ensure that any future appointments are made on the basis
of meritagainstthe specification prepared for each appointmentand, therefore, the Companydoes not considerit
appropriate to setdiversity targets. At 31 December 2022, there were two male Directors and two female Directors on
the Board.

Sustainable and Responsible Investment Policy and Approach
Further details on abrdn's Sustainable and Responsible Investment Policy and Approach for Direct Real Estate are
available at abrdn.com.

Environmental, Social and Human Rights Issues

The Company has no employees as the Board has delegated dayto day managementand administrative functions to
abrdn Fund Managers Limited. There are therefore no disclosures to be made in respect of employees. The Company's
sociallyresponsible investment policyis outlined in the Investment Manager's Review.

Due to the nature of the Company's business, being a Companythatdoes not offer goods and services to customers,
the Board considers thatitis not within the scope of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 ("MSA"). The Companyis not
required to make a slaveryand human trafficking statement. The Board considers the Company's supplychains,
dealing predominantly with professional advisers and service providers in the financial services industry, to be low
risk in relation to this matter. A copy of the Manager's statementin compliance with the Modern Slavery Actis
available fordownload at abrdn.com

The bulk of emissions relating to properties owned by the Companyare the responsibility of the tenants and any
emissions relating to the Company's registered office are the responsibility of abrdn plc. The Company has no direct
greenhouse gas emissions to report from the operations of its business, although itis responsible forlow emissions
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Directors' Reports) Regulations 2013, see page 58 of the published Annual Reportand financial statements for the
yearended 31 December 2022.

Viability Statement

The Companydoes not have a formal fixed period strategic plan butthe Board formally considers risks and strategy

atleastannually. The Board considers the Company, with no fixed life, to be a long-term investment vehicle, but for

the purposes of this viability statement has decided thata period of three years is an appropriate period over which
to report. The Board considers that this period reflects a balance between looking out over a long-term horizon and
the inherent uncertainties of looking out further than three years.

In assessing the viability of the Company over the review period the Directors have conducted a robust review of the
principal risks focussing upon the following factors:

The principal risks detailed in the Strategic Report;

The ongoing relevance of the Company's investment objective in the current environment;

The demand forthe Company's shares evidenced by the historical level of premium or discount;

The level of income generated by the Companyand the stability of tenants;

The level of gearing including the requirement to meetlending covenants, negotiate new facilities and repay
orrefinance future facilities;

The continuation vote required to be putto shareholders atthe AGM to be held in 2024; and

The flexibility of the Company's bank facilities and putting these facilities in place in time to meet
commitments.

L]
The Directors have reviewed summaries from the portfolio models prepared by the Investment Manager which have
been stress tested to highlight the performance of the portfolio in a number of varying economic conditions coupled
with potential opportunities for mitigation. The Directors have also stress tested the financial position of the
Company with attention on upcoming funding foracquisitions, and particularly the loss of a tenantin a French asset.

The Company has prepared cash flow forecasts which reflect the potential impact of reductions in rental income
including reasonably possible downside scenarios.

The impact of reductions in rental income could be mitigated through a reduction in dividends to shareholders if
considered necessary by the Board.

The Companyhas modelled severe but plausible downside scenarios, taking into account specifictenantrisks. These
scenarios modelled reduced rental income through to 2025 and the worst case model equates to an overall 40%
reduction of rental income perannum over that period.

Accordingly, taking into account the Company's current position and the potential impact of its principal risks and
uncertainties, the Directors have a reasonable expectation thatthe Company will be able to continue in operation
and meetits liabilities as theyfall due fora period of three years from the date of this Report subject to
shareholders' approval of the continuation vote required under the articles to be putto the AGM to be held in 2024,
noting that the Directors are unaware at this earlystage of anyshareholderintentions to vote againstsuch a
resolution. In making this assessment, the Board has considered that matters such as significant economic
uncertainty, stock market volatilityand changes in investor sentiment could have an impacton its assessment of the
Company's prospects and viabilityin the future.

5172 Statement

The Board is required to describe to the Company's shareholders how the Directors have discharged their duties and
responsibilities over the course of the financial yearundersection 172 (1) of the Companies Act 2006 (the "s172
Statement"). This s172 Statement requires the Directors to explain how they have promoted the success of the
Company forthe benefit of its members as a whole, taking into account the likely long-term consequences of
decisions, the need to fosterrelationships with all stakeholders and the impact of the Company's operations on the
environment.

The Board's philosophyis thatthe Companyshould operate in a transparent culture where all parties are treated with
respectand provided with the opportunity to offer practical challenge and participate in positive debate which is
focused on the aim of achieving the expectations of shareholders and otherstakeholders alike. The Board reviews the
culture and mannerin which the Investment Manager operates atits regular meetings and receives regularreporting
and feedback from the other key service providers.

Investment trusts are long-term investment vehicles, with no employees. The Company's Board of Directors sets the
investment mandate as published in the mostrecent prospectus, monitors the performance of all service providers
and is responsible forreviewing strategy on a regular basis.

Key Stakeholders

The key stakeholderand service provider for the Company is the Alternative Investment Fund Manager (the "Manager")
and this relationship is reviewed at each Board meeting and relationships with otherservice providers are reviewed
atleastannually.

Shareholders are seen as keystakeholders in the Company. The Board seeks to meetatleastannually with
shareholders atthe Annual General Meeting. This is seen as a very useful opportunity to understand the needs and
views of the shareholders. In between AGMs the Directors and Investment Manager also conduct programmes of
investor meetings with largerinstitutional, private wealth and othershareholders to ensure thatthe Companyis
meeting their needs. Such regular meetings may take the form of joint presentations with the Investment Manager or
meetings solely with a Director where any matters of concern may be raised directly.

Our European partner lending banks are also keystakeholders. We leverage off the Investment Manager's key
relationships with a wide range of lending banks and the Investment Manager has regular contact with these banks
updating on the portfolio and valuations and also on plans fornew acquisitions ordisposals. The other key
stakeholder group is that of the underlying tenants that occupy space in the properties thatthe Companyowns. The
Board aims to conducta site visitatleastannually with the aim of meeting tenants locallyand discussing their
businesses and needs and assessing where improvements may be made or expectations managed. The Investment
Manager's asset managers are tasked with conducting meetings with building managers and tenantrepresentatives
in order to ensure the smooth running of the day to day management of the properties. The Board receives reports on
the tenants' activities atits regular Board meetings.

The Board via the Management Engagement Committee also ensures thatthe views of its service providers are heard
and atleastannuallyreviews these relationships in detail. The aim is to ensure that contractual arrangements
remaininline with best practice, services being offered meet the requirements and needs of the Company and
performance is in line with the expectations of the Board, Manager, Investment Manager and other relevant
stakeholders. Reviews will include those of the Company depositary, custodian, share registrar, broker, legal adviser,
lenders and auditor.

The Investment Manager's Report details the keyinvestment decisions taken during the yearand subsequently.
The Investment Manager has continued to invest the Company's assets in accordance with the mandate provided by
shareholders atlaunch, underthe oversight of the Board. In line with the increased equity base, further gearing
was introduced into the portfolio with the aim of maintaining gearing atassetlevel atoraround 35% over the
longerterm.abrdn's dedicated treasury team was successful in negotiating the debt facilities at competitive
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benefitof all shareholders. The Companyhas an uncommitted four year €70 million master facilities loan
agreement with Investec Bank plcto provide additional flexibility. This facilityincreases the Company's ability to
acquire new assets priorto anyfresh equityraise and will reduce the impact of cash drag on investmentreturns.

Details of how the Board and Investment Manager have soughtto address environmental, social and governance
matters across the portfolio are disclosed from page 55 of the published Annual Reportand financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Companyis just over five years old having been launched atthe end of 2017. However, itis a long-term investor
and the Board has established the necessary procedures and processes to promote the long-term success of the
Company. The Board will continue to monitor, evaluate and seek to improve these processes as the Company grows,
to ensure thatthe investment proposition is delivered to shareholders and other stakeholders in line with their
expectations.

Future

Many of the non-performance related matters likely to affect the Companyin the future are common across all closed
ended investment companies, such as the attractiveness of investment companies as investment vehicles,
geopolitical tensions and the impact of regulatory changes. These factors need to be viewed alongside the outlook for
the Company, both generallyand specifically, in relation to the portfolio. The Board's view on the general outlook for
the Companycan be found in my Chairman's Statement whilst the Investment Manager's views on the outlook for the
portfolio are included in the Investment Manager's Review.

Tony Roper
Chairman
20 April 2023

Results
Financial Highlights

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Total assets (€'000) 817,783 728,386
Total equity shareholders' funds (netassets) (€'000) 489,977 487,505
Netassetvalue pershare ((—:uros)1 119 129
Netassetvalue pershare (pence)1 105.43 108.50
Share price (mid market) (pence) 68.50 117.00
Market capitalisation (£'000) 282,339 438,050
Share price (discount)/premium to sterling netassetvaluel (35.0%) 7.8%
Dividends and earnings
Netassetvalue total return (€)1 (3.8%) 12.4%
Dividends paid pershare 5.64c (4.80p) 5.64c (4.84p)
Revenue reserves (€'000) 20,083 15,939
Total comprehensive return for year (€'000) (18,442) 44,443
Operating costs
Ongoing charges ratio (Group onlyexpenses)1 1.3% 1.3%
Ongoing charges ratio (Group and property expenses)1 1.7% 1.8%
Performance (total return)
Year ended 31 Year ended 31 Since Launch
December 2022 December 2021 % return
Share price® (38.3%) 12.4% (15.1%)
(3.8%) 12.4% 29.2%

Net Asset Value (EUR)1

1 . . . -
Considered to be an Alternative Performance Measure (see Glossary on pages 150 to 154 of the published Annual Report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 for more
information).

Dividends declared in respect of the Financial Year to 31 December 2022



Dividend Dividend Qualifying Qualifying  Ex-dividend Record Pay Date

Distribution  Distribution Interest Interest Date Date
GBP pence  EURO cents GBP pence  EURO cents
Equivalent Equivalent

First 0.86 1.02 0.33 0.39 01/06/2022 06/06/2022  24/06/2022
Interim
Second 0.95 1.11 0.25 0.30 01/09/2022 02/09/2022  23/09/2022
Interim
Third 1.01 1.19 0.19 0.22 01/12/2022 02/12/2022 30/12/2022
Interim
Fourth 1.00 1.18 0.20 0.23  02/03/2023 30/03/2023  24/03/2023
Interim
Total 3.82 4.50 0.97 1.14

Strategic Report
Investment Manager's Review

Having joined the investment managementteam responsible for managing the Company's portfolio in October 2022, it
is mypleasure to present my first Manager's Review.

2022 Market Overview

The European logistics sector experienced anotherstrong yearin terms of occupier fundamentals and leasing activity,
whilst on the capital markets side the picture was more mixed. Q4 2022 brought a steep investment slowdown due to
the rapid adjustment to the macro financial climate with rising interestrates and bond yield expansion. The speed of
the impact has been unprecedented but, with prime logistics values impacted the quickest and hardest, this has also
led to investors returning to the market fasterthan in previous cycles as theysee opportunities, albeittransactions
are still relativelylow in number.

Supplychains continue to move through a period of exceptional structural change, backed by three key demand
drivers. First, the Covid pandemicaccelerated manyaspects of de-globalisation, stress-tested existing distribution
networks, and increased the need for companies to diversify their supply chains. Second, we believe e-commerce
remains an incremental demand driver for the long-term, despite a slowdown in the growth rate; some pull back in
growth was naturally due after the e-commerce boom during the pandemic where online sales penetration rates
were artificially boosted by lockdowns. Lastly, ESG and "net zero" considerations are beginning to playa clearerrole
in logistics performance where tighter regulations from the European Union's Energy Efficiency Directive combined
with valuation guidance from the RICS, will push tenants and investors to upgrade buildings to deliver more efficient
performance. This will further widen the gap between future-fit assets and those facing obsolescence. When
markets are undergoing a transformation, such as in logistics, the choice of asset qualityin the rightlocation and
the future relevance of the building are increasingly critical factors.

Overall logistics leasing demand has been strongin recentyears. Take up across the 13 largest logistics markets
exceeded an estimated 37.5 million square metres in 2022, a 6% decrease on 2021 but 18% above the five-year
average. Germany, Poland, Netherlands, the UKand France saw the lion's share of take up in 2022, accounting for
around 78% of all leasing activity across the 13 countries covered by Savills. While the share broadlyreflects the size
of the economy, the rise of Poland and the relative importance of the Netherlands in terms of logistics demand,
represents the strategicroles these markets playin the pan-European supplychain. In the context of continued strong
demand, the logistics supply outlook remains constrained in 2023. The average European logistics vacancy rate fell by
50 basis points from 3.6% atthe end of 2021 to just 3.1% at the end of 2022, the lowest level on record. In many markets
the supply of high-quality space is negligible and mostleasing activityis driven by pre-lets or through the
development process. The undersupply of modern logistics space in good locations across the supplychain means
thatcashflows should be increasinglyresilientand strong income growth should persist. For European logistics, the
milderrecession expectation is supportive given the link between economic growth and logistics activity.

Alarge proportion of European stock is no longer appropriate for today's logistics requirements and requires
modernisation, especiallyas regulatorydeadlines around energy efficiency approach. Current total supply growth of
c.8% for 2022 is expected to slow to c.7% p.a.in 2023 and likely level off towards 4% in the longer term, according to
Green Street. Two of the key drivers of the expected limitations of new supplyare increased financing and
development costs. 2022 has seen development economics deteriorate, with estimated profit margins halving to
c.15%, driven by higher construction input costs (up 25% in 2022). The ESG factor cannot be underestimated as a further
constraining factor on future-fit logistics supply. In preparation forthe net zero transition, the Research and Energy
Committee of the European Parliamentis finalising its position on the Energy Performance of Buildings Directive
which seeks to make the EU building sector climate neutral by 2050. However, we are seeing more significant
retrofitting and energy improvement costs factored into cash flows and this is being accounted forin purchase prices
orvaluations. Polarisation between prime and secondaryassets will amplifyas limited new supplyin mostsectors
becomes evident, while secondary and tertiary properties begin to be penalised.

Industrial rents have experienced strong growth over the last two years, an aspect of Europe that has lagged the UK
and US markets. While yields have come under pressure from higher debt costs, some of the yield impactis being
offset by rental growth orrentindexation builtinto many European lease contracts. Open market prime logistics rents
increased by an unweighted average of 10.1% over the 12 months to the fourth quarter of 2022. Rents have been rising
consistently across geographies and we expect growth to continue over the medium to long-term, as the vacancyrate
is onlyaround 3% in most countries. Cash flows should become more resilient given this under supply and the
favorable growth drivers, with stronger growth potential in the more urban areas where pressures on supply are more
acute.

Investment values have declined as interestrates increased by 350 basis points in the second half of 2022. Prime
logistics yields had tightened to 3% or below in the most sought-after locations. This was no longersupportable as
debt costs spiked and relative pricing against bonds weakened. However, given the fundamentals and strength of
investor sentiment towards long-term structural demand drivers, when interest rates stabilise and commercial real
estate begins to attractincreased investmentagain, we believe that the logistics sectoris well placed to recover lost
performance over the shortto medium term.

Capital flows into European logistics real estate have increased to now regularly reach 20% of total investment, up
from 10% in 2013. The volume of transactions closed in 2022 was unsurprisingly down from the record setin 2021, yet
still 24% up on the five yearaverage, despite the sharp fall in investmentin the latter stages of the yearas buyer
and seller pricing expectations widened. The largest markets continue to be Germany, France, The Netherlands and
Spain.

Well diversified portfolio with strong urban profile well positioned for future rental growth

Informed by the Manager's research and strategy teams, the Company continues to pursue its high conviction strategy
focusing on the most'liquid' and in-demand part of the European logistics market where both capital and rental
growth expectations are highest. Urban logistics and mid-sized ('mid-box') warehouses are the areas of the market
where supply/demand dynamics are the strongestand the potential tenantbase the largest. A typical mid-box
warehouse sits between 20,000 - 50,000 square metres in size and for urban logistics, often called the 'final touch in
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In July, the Company completed the well-flagged acquisition of Phase IV of the Gavilanes portfolio, which has been
developed as an exclusive hub for Amazon with its own parking deck including supply forits electricvans and benefits
from a 25 yearlease.

In August, the Companyannounced the acquisition of two urban logistics properties, in Bordeauxand Niort, France
for €23 million, reflecting a netinitial yield of 4.0% and leased to Dachser France with annual indexation. Both offer
medium term expansion opportunities. Builtin 2005, the Bordeaux asset totals 6,504 sqm on a total plotsize of c.
29,000 sqm (22% site cover) and is located only 8 km from the centre of Bordeaux, one of France's most populated
cities with fast access to the area's majorarterial routes. The Niort property, builtin 2014, totals 3,939 sqm sitting on
44,000 sqm of land and benefits from its proximity to the A10 motorway connecting to Paris and Bordeaux.

In October, the Companyannounced the €9.3 million acquisition of an urban logistics warehouse in Dijon, France, also
leased to Dachserand representing a 4.2% netinitial yield. The 5,069 sqm Dijon property sits on a total plotsize of
c.27,000 sqm on the main logistics 'backbone'in the area with excellentarterial connectivity. Our Horst, Netherlands,
property was also acquired in October for €12.2 million as part of a sale and leaseback deal with Limax, a producer,
packagerand distributor of soft fruits and mushrooms. The freehold property, which covers a total land plot of ¢.40,500
sqm, also provides ample scope for future extensions and benefited from a ten yearlease term at purchase subject to
annual CPl capped indexation, with the price reflecting a netinitial yield of 3.8%. The property features rooftop solar
panels which enhance the portfolio's sustainability credentials, in line with the Company's strategy.

With our focus on long-term, sustainable income, the future-proofing or 'second life' of our warehouses is an
important consideration when acquiring anynew assets. Building specifications we considerimportant, amongst
others, are the eaves' height, floor-load capacity, number of loading doors, manoeuvrabilityaround the building,
powersupplyand increasinglyimportant, a building's sustainability credentials.

Buildings positioned alongside main transport corridors, close to seaports, infrastructural nodes, orin the case of
urban logistics, close to large population concentrations, are important criteria in analysing new acquisition
opportunities.

The Company's focus is solelyon Continental Europe, where 75% of the investable European logistics market can be
found, providing a deep pool of potential acquisition targets and strong diversification options, limiting single
marketrisk. Astandard lease agreementon the Continent often includes full annual CPl indexation of rents, thereby
providing a strong hedge against inflation which has become particularlyrelevantin today's inflationary
environment. Despite recent upward pressure, ourinvestment strategy continues to benefit from lower financing
costs fixed with European banks. Finally, e-commerce penetration is still atan earlystage on the Continent with
strong forecast growth, creating an attractive investment backdrop. Savills reported that Statista estimates an
additional 13.2 million shoppers will adopt e-commerce in Germany, UK, France, Italy and Spain by 2025, having
grown by 47 million since 2017. Statista also forecast strong growth in online sales in the food sectoras more tech
conscious generations become earners and consumers.

Growth is expected to be strongestin the urban logistics sub sector, especiallyassets in dominantcities that have
warehousing supply constraints and demand from different land uses, resulting in higherland costs and ultimately
underpinning higherrents. Parcel deliveryspecialists are continuing to improve their services by reducing delivery
times and thereby transportation costs. Operating a logistics warehouse in close proximity to their ultimate customer
base is the best wayto reduce theircost base with rental and building costs materiallyless impactful than
transportation costs.

Approximately 51% of the Company's portfolio by value comprises urban logistics warehouses in locations such as
Madrid, Frankfurt, Warsaw, Barcelona and Den Hoorn located in the Netherlands between the cities of The Hague and
Rotterdam.

As atthe Company's year-end, 18 out of the 27 warehouses held in the portfolio were newly developed at the point of
purchase and have been constructed since 2018. The portfolio specifications are therefore very modern and in line
with tenantrequirements. The portfolio is well diversified with 27 assets spread across five different countries. As at
31 December 2022, Spain represented the largest geographic exposure in the portfolio byvalue (35%), followed by the
Netherlands (30%), France (14%), Poland (12%) and Germany (9%).

Property Portfolio as at 31 December 2022

WAULT incl WAULT excl Q4 22
breaks breaks % of
(years) (years) Portfolio

Country Location Built
France Avignon 2018 4.6 7.4 6.8
France Meung sur Loire 2004 - - 2.9
France Bordeaux 2005 6.1 9.1 1.6
France Dijon 2004 8.0 11.0 13
France Niort 2014 0.7 0.7 1.5
Germany Erlensee 2018 5.1 10.9 5.5
Germany Florsheim 2015 5.3 5.7 3.5
Netherlands Den Hoorn 2020 7.6 7.6 7.4
Netherlands Ede 1999/ 2005 5.2 5.2 4.1
Netherlands Horst 2005 9.7 9.7 1.4
Netherlands Oss 2019 11.5 11.5 2.3
Netherlands 's Heerenberg 2009/ 2011 9.0 9.0 4.2
Netherlands Waddinxveen 1983/ 1994/ 2002/ 2018 10.9 10.9 5.9
Netherlands Zeewolde 2019 11.5 11.5 4.6
Poland Krakow 2018 2.8 2.8 4.1
Poland Lodz 2020 5.4 54 4.1
Poland Warsaw 2019 4.9 4.9 4.1
Spain Barcelona 2019 3.5 6.5 2.5
Spain Leon 2019 6.2 6.2 2.4
Spain Madrid - Coslada 1999 4.0 7.0 1.5

Spain Madrid - Gavilanes 2019 7.1 7.1 4.7
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Spain Madrid - Gavilanes 2019 0.6 7.6 2.4
1.2

Spain Madrid - Gavilanes 2020 3.6 13.6 2.0
2.1

Spain Madrid - Gavilanes 2020 15 3.5 1.7
2.2

Spain Madrid - Gavilanes 2020 2.5 4.5 1.6
2.3

Spain Madrid - Gavilanes 3 2019 4.4 8.4 5.9

Spain Madrid - Gavilanes 4 2022 14.3 24.3 10.0

TOTAL - Q4 22 6.7 8.9 100.0

A strong tenant base with inflation linked income
Our key objective is generating long-term sustainable income streams in order to payan attractive quarterly
dividend. 2022 saw the Company collect 100% of total expected rent. With more than 60 lease agreements, the
portfolio has a diversified tenant base across differentsectors. In addition to the regularinteraction of ourasset
and property managers with ourtenants, their covenant strength is monitored on a regularbasis using a variety of
data sources including Dun & Bradstreet.

In terms of exposure by sector, third party logistics providers ("3PLs") represent the largest segmentat 35% of total

portfolio rent. The 3PL market continues to be buoyant, particularly those businesses specialising in parcel deliveries;
ourexposure comprises DHL, which occupies ourassets in Madrid and Warsaw and Dachser occupying three assets in
Niort, Dijon and Bordeaux, France.

Both DHLand Dachser France each account for 4.2% of rental income in aggregate. Manufacturers (19%) and companies
related to the food industry (19%) complete the top three. Food related companies often have a long historyand are of
a scale that makes them stable income producers with supermarkets like Biocoop or Carrefour and traders in food
such as Combilo all performing well during the pandemic. The retail exposure (13% of total rent), is largelyrelated to
Netherlands based drugstore Kruidvat (part of the A.S Watson group) operating its e-commerce platform and
Decathlon, the global discountsports retailer, whose products have been in high demand since the pandemic. The
direct exposure to e-commerce (10% of total rent) has increased from 3% lastyear due to the addition of the state-of-
the-art, last mile Amazon facility at Gavilanes, Madrid. This is the largestassetin the portfolio byvalue.

Astandard lease agreement on the Continent typically has annual CPl indexation of rent which is notthe standard in
the UK. Having this annual inflation protection has proved beneficial with rising energy prices and supplychain
issues driving inflation towards double digits in the Eurozone towards the end of the year. 65% of the portfolio's
currentincome has full CPl or ILAT1 indexation, 27% has a cap ata level between 2-3%, 7% is German threshold
indexation and 1% other. 2022 inflation figures will flow through and help to grow our 2023 income on existing leases
which have an average length of 6.7 years including break options and 8.9 years excluding breaks.

Strong rent collection and a low costloan portfolio underpins the Company's stated distribution policy. The loan
portfolio is still young with assetlevel loan facilities effected immediately after full deployment of capital. Stress
testing on the existing financial covenants such as Interest Cover Ratios and Loan-To-Value (LTV) is conducted on a
regular basis. In order to diversify risk, the loan facilities have also been cross-collateralised with groups of single-

tenanted buildings or have diversified risk thanks to multi-tenanted leasing structures.

Top 10 tenants based on current rents

Contracted Contracted ~ WAULT incl.  WAULT excl.
rent rent breaks breaks
(€000 p.a.) (%) (years) (years)
Tenant Property
1 Amazon Madrid - Gavilanes x 2 3,299 10% 11.3 19.1
2 A.G.van der Helm Den Hoorn 3,005 8% 7.4 7.4
3 Biocoop Avignon 2,450 7% 4.6 7.4
4 Combilo International B.V. Waddinxveen 2,173 6% 10.9 10.9
5 A.S. Watson B.V. Ede 1,663 5% 4.9 49
7 VSH Fittings B.V. Zeewolde 1,644 5% 11.5 115
6 Arrival Madrid - Gavilanes 1,614 5% 4.4 8.4
8 JCL Logistics 's Heerenberg 1,524 5% 9.0 9.0
9 DHL Madrid - Coslada; Warsaw 1,467 4% 4.7 5.4
10 DACHSER France Bordeaux; Niort; Dijon 1,455 4% 4.6 6.4
Subtotal 20,294 59% 7.9 8.4
Other tenants 14,388 41% 6.0 7.4
Portfolio as at 31 December 2022 34,682 100% 6.7 8.9
Loan portfolio 31 December 2022
Existing loan End date Loan Duration in Interest
(€million) Years (incl margin)
Country Property Bank
Germany Erlensee DZ HYP 17.8 January 2029 10 1.62%



Germany Florsheim DZ HYP 12.4 January 2026 1.54%
France Avignon + Meung Sur Loire BAYERN LB 33.0 February2026 1.57%
Netherlands Ede/Waddinxveen + Oss BERLIN HYP 44.2  June 2025 1.37%
Netherlands 's Heerenberg BERLIN HYP 11.0 June 2025 1.13%
Netherlands Zeewolde + Den Hoorn BERLIN HYP 43.2 January 2028 1.40%
Spain Coslada + Leon + Girona ING Bank 25.4 September 2025 3.01%
Spain Gavilanes Phase | + 11 + 111 ING Bank 44.0 July 2025 2.61%
Spain Gavilanes Phase IV ING Bank 39.3 September 2025 3.01%
Total 270.3 2.01%

Lease re-gears and additions
During the year there were a number of asset managementinitiatives delivered on.

In August the Companyagreed a new 5yearlease with ADER atthe previouslyvacant Unit 3, within Phase
Il at its Gavilanes site, Madrid. ADER provides distribution services to companies in the freightand
logistics sectorand is consolidating its operations in the Gavilanes area with the leasing of this second,
7,375 sqm building. The letting is fully CPl indexed and accretive to performance having completed well in
advance of the guarantee timing assumptions and ata rental level ahead of underwriting.

In Lodz, Poland, Tabiplastsigned an 8-year lease over 1,600 sqm of space ahead of expectations and the
previous tenant's 3 year option.

In Krakow, a vacated unitwas leton a new 3-year term to Gebrider Weiss ahead of previous rentand ERV.
Also atthe same asset, packaging company DS Smith extended its lease by a further four years.

After staged incentives, these leases generate c. €778,000 of additional annual income in aggregate.

Meanwhile, we are in the final stages of agreeing new arrangements at Ede and Avignon which will be
reported when signed.

2022 - Robust financial and operational performance impacted by increasing

market volatility

The NAV total return for 2022 was -3.8% (in euro terms) with the Companydelivering a solid 29.2% since
launch. Despite Q4's portfolio valuation decline of 6%, the end of year portfolio valuation stood at €759
million. This is an increase from the 2021 year end portfolio valuation of €666 million following our
additional purchases through the yearand we have seen total contracted rent grow to €34.7 million per
annum from €29.4 million at the end of 2021. With inflation remaining elevated across Europe, our
indexed linked leases will further grow ourrental income and partly mitigate any further outward yield
movements. Despite continued macroeconomic uncertainty, we are forecasting a stronger market later
in the yearand into 2024.

In terms of future growth, the portfolio continues to be positioned with a focus on mid-boxes and urban
logistics, the segment of the market which the Investment Manager believes has continued potential,
especially with respect to rental growth. There are several options within the portfolio where value may
be added and where tenants mayrequire additional space. One such example from 2022 is the 2,500 sqm
extension project completed in Waddinxveen in the Netherlands on an adjacent piece of land owned by
the tenantand all three of the recent purchases in France have low site coverage and offer good
expansion potential.

Well diversified debt portfolio

At the end of 2022, the Company’s fixed debt facilities totalled €270.3 million atan average all-in rate
of 2.01% and with a loan to value of 34%, below the long-term target of 35%. The Company’s secured
fixed rate debt supports its investment objective with the earliest re-financing of debtrequired in mid-
2025.

The Companyarranged asset level fixed rate bank debt financings in those local markets where all-in
loan costs were the lowest, such as Germany, the Netherlands, France and Spain with dedicated real
estate banks thatare active in this lending space.

The Companyalso benefits from its revolving credit facility agreement with Investec Bank in the amount of
€70 million which provides further flexibility for the acquisition of new properties and / or for the
implementation of asset managementinitiatives. At the end of 2022 the revolving credit facility
agreement with Investec Bank was undrawn.

Outlook

We believe Continental European logistics real estate is well placed to navigate the current high
inflationary environment due to its CPl indexation characteristics and robust market fundamentals.
Backed by the tailwinds of record-low vacancies and structural demand drivers, rental growth is
expected to retain momentum in most European logistics hotspots. While lingering economic, political,
and financial markets uncertainties maydisruptinvestmenttrends in the short-term, the favourable
underlying trends including ongoing e-commerce penetration, onshoring and supplychain
reconfiguration/ modernisation should remain importantdrivers for the sector.

We continue to prefer fringe city locations where land supplyis more constrained, and where tenantand
investordemand is active. Good qualityassets in these locations are hard to source for tenants due to
low levels of new completions over the lastten years. The development pipeline is also constrained by
rapidlyrising debt finance costs, together with high construction and labour costs, planning difficulties
and more stringent controls over sustainabilityand efficiencyratings of new schemes. abrdn's large and
established local network and reputation provides a competitive advantage when sourcing deals. abrdn
is one of Europe's largestreal estate investors, managing approximately €53 billion of real estate, with
€21 hillinn nf lnpsictire accets arrnss 12 eniintriec Ite eicht nffices arrnss Fiirnne - Ilandan Fdinhursh



colleagues including portfolio managers, local transaction and asset managers and researchers.

Indeed, we are alreadyseeing signs of interestreturning to the sector with increased investment activity
in those markets that have alreadyseen strong pricing correction, such as in the Netherlands. Various
successful capital raises targeting the sector exclusively, oras part of multi-sector strategies, have
recently been announced providing ongoing evidence in the longer-term conviction for the sector.

Troels Andersen
Fund Manager,
abrdn

20 April 2023

Property Portfolio as at 31 December 2022

WAULT incl  WAULT excl Q4 22
breaks breaks % of
(years) (years) Portfolio

Country Location Built
France Avignon 2018 4.6 7.4 6.8
France Meung sur Loire 2004 - - 2.9
France Bordeaux 2005 6.1 9.1 1.6
France Dijon 2004 8.0 11.0 1.3
France Niort 2014 0.7 0.7 1.5
Germany Erlensee 2018 5.1 10.9 5.5
Germany Florsheim 2015 5.3 5.7 3.5
Netherlands Den Hoorn 2020 7.6 7.6 7.4
Netherlands Ede 1999/ 2005 5.2 5.2 4.1
Netherlands Horst 2005 9.7 9.7 1.4
Netherlands Oss 2019 11.5 11.5 2.3
Netherlands 's Heerenberg 2009/ 2011 9.0 9.0 4.2
Netherlands Waddinxveen 1983/ 1994/ 2002/ 2018 10.9 10.9 5.9
Netherlands Zeewolde 2019 11.5 11.5 4.6
Poland Krakow 2018 2.8 2.8 4.1
Poland Lodz 2020 5.4 5.4 4.1
Poland Warsaw 2019 4.9 4.9 4.1
Spain Barcelona 2019 3.5 6.5 2.5
Spain Leon 2019 6.2 6.2 2.4
Spain Madrid - Coslada 1999 4.0 7.0 1.5
Spain Madrid - Gavilanes 1.1 2019 7.1 7.1 4.7
Spain Madrid - Gavilanes 1.2 2019 0.6 7.6 2.4
Spain Madrid - Gavilanes 2.1 2020 3.6 13.6 2.0
Spain Madrid - Gavilanes 2.2 2020 1.5 3.5 1.7
Spain Madrid - Gavilanes 2.3 2020 2.5 4.5 1.6
Spain Madrid - Gavilanes 3 2019 4.4 8.4 5.9
Spain Madrid - Gavilanes 4 2022 14.3 24.3 10.0
TOTAL - Q4 22 6.7 8.9 100.0

Governance

Directors' Report

The Directors present their Report and the audited financial statements forthe yearended 31 December
2022.

Results and Dividends

Details of the Company's results and dividends are shown on page 21 of the published Annual Reportand
financial statements forthe yearended 31 December 2022. The dividend policyis disclosed in the
Strategic Report.

Investment Trust Status
The Companywas incorporated on 25 October 2017 (registered in England & Wales No. 11032222) and has



been accepted by HM Revenue & Customs as an investment trust subject to the Company continuing to
meetthe relevanteligibility conditions of Section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and the ongoing
requirements of Part 2 Chapter 3 Statutory Instrument 2011/2999 for all financial periods commencing on or
after 15 December 2017. The Directors are of the opinion thatthe Companyhas conducted its affairs for
the yearended 31 December 2022 so as to enable it to comply with the ongoing requirements for
investment trust status.

Individual Savings Accounts

The Company has conducted its affairs so as to satisfy the requirements as a qualifying security for
Individual Savings Accounts. The Directors intend thatthe Company will continue to conductits affairs in
this manner.

Share Capital

The Company's capital structure is summarised in note 16 to the financial statements. At 31 December
2022, there were 412,174,356 fully paid Ordinary shares of 1p each in issue. During the year no Ordinary
shares were purchased in the market fortreasury or cancellation. On 4 February 2022, 34,545,455 new
Ordinaryshares were issued at 110.0p pershare ata premium to the prevailing unaudited NAV.

Voting Rights, Share Restrictions and Amendments to Articles of Association
Ordinaryshareholders are entitled to vote on all resolutions which are proposed at general meetings of
the Company.

The Ordinary shares carry a right to receive dividends. On a winding up, after meeting the liabilities of the
Company, the surplus assets will be paid to Ordinaryshareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

There are no restrictions concerning the transfer of securities in the Company; no special rights with
regard to control attached to securities; no agreements between holders of securities regarding their
transfer known to the Company; and no agreements which the Companyis party to that might affectits
control following a takeover bid.

In accordance with the Companies Act,amendments to the Company's Articles of Association mayonly be
made byshareholders passing a special resolution in general meeting.

Borrowings
A full breakdown of the Company's loan facilities is provided in note 14 to the financial statements.

Management Agreement
Underthe terms of a Management Agreement dated 17 November 2017 between the Company and the
AIFM, abrdn Fund Managers Limited (and amended bywayofside letters dated 25 May 2018, 22 February
2019 and 24 January 2023), the AIFM was appointed to act as alternative investment fund manager of the
Company with responsibility for portfolio managementand risk management of the Company's
investments. Under the terms of the Management Agreement, the AIFM may delegate portfolio
management functions to the Investment Managerand is entitled to an annual management fee together
with reimbursement of all reasonable costs and expenses incurred byitand the Investment Managerin
the performance of its duties. Pursuant to the terms of the Management Agreement, the AIFM is entitled
to receive a tiered annual management fee (the "Annual Management Fee") calculated byreference to
the Net Asset Value (as calculated under IFRS) on the following basis:

e Onsuch partofthe NetAsset Value thatis less than orequal to €1.25 billion, 0.75 per cent. per

annum.

e Onsuch partofthe Net Asset Value thatis more than €1.25 billion, 0.60 per cent. perannum.

The Annual Management Fee is payable in Euros quarterlyin arrears, save forany period which is less
than a full calendar quarter.

The Company or the AIFM may terminate the Management Agreement by giving not less than 12 months'
prior written notice.

The AIFM has also been appointed by the Companyunder the terms of the Management Agreement to
provide day-to-day administration services to the Company and provide the general companysecretarial
functions required by the Companies Act. In this role, the AIFM will provide certain administrative services
to the Company which includes reporting the Net Asset Value, bookkeeping and accounts preparation.
Effective from March 2020 accounting and administration services undertaken on behalf of the Company
have been delegated to Brown Brothers Harriman.

The AIFM has also delegated the provision of the general companysecretarial services to abrdn Holdings
Limited.

Risk Management
Details of the financial risk management policies and objectives relative to the use of financial
instruments by the Companyare setoutin note 22 to the financial statements.

The Board

The current Directors, Ms Gulliver, Mr Heawood, Mr Roperand Ms Wilde were the only Directors who
served during the year. In accordance with the Articles of Association, each Director will retire from the
Board atthe Annual General Meeting convened for 12 June 2023 and, being eligible, will offer himself or
herself forre-election to the Board. In accordance with Principle 23 of the AIC's 2019 Code of Corporate
Governance, each Director will retire annuallyand submitthemselves forre-election at the AGM.

The Board considers thatthere is a balance of skills and experience within the Board relevant to the
leadership and direction of the Companyand thatall the Directors contribute effectively.

In common with mostinvestment trusts, the Company has no employees. Directors' & Officers' liability
insurance cover has been maintained throughout the year atthe expense of the Company.

The Role of the Chairman and Senior Independent Director

The Chairman is responsible for providing effective leadership to the Board, by setting the tone of the
Company, demonstrating objective judgement and promoting a culture of openness and debate. The
Chairman facilitates the effective contribution, and encourages active engagement, by each Director. In
conjunction with the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures that Directors receive accurate, timelyand
clearinformation to assist them with effective decision-making. The Chairman leads the evaluation of the
Board and individual Directors, and acts upon the results of the evaluation process by recognising
strengths and addressing any weaknesses. The Chairman also engages with majorshareholders offering
annual review meetings and ensures thatall Directors understand shareholder views.

The SeniorIndependent Director acts as a sounding board for the Chairman and as an intermediary for
other directors, when necessary. The Senior Independent Director takes responsibility foran orderly
succession process forthe Chairman, and leads the annual appraisal of the Chairman's performance and
is alsoavailable to shareholders to discuss any concerns they may have.

Corporate Governance



The Companyis committed to high standards of corporate governance. The Board is accountable to the
Company's shareholders for good governance and this statement describes how the Company has applied
the principles identified in the UK Corporate Governance Code as published in July 2018 (the "UK Code"),
which is available on the Financial Reporting Council's (the "FRC") website: frc.org.uk.

The Board has also considered the principles and provisions of the AIC Code of Corporate Governance as
published in February 2019 (the "AIC Code"). The AIC Code addresses the principles and provisions set out
in the UK Code, as well as setting out additional provisions on issues thatare of specificrelevance to the
Company. The AIC Code is available on the AIC's website: theaic.co.uk.

The Board considers thatreporting againstthe principles and provisions of the AIC Code, which has
been endorsed by the FRC, provides more relevantinformation to shareholders. The full text of the
Company's Corporate Governance Statement can be found on the Company's website:
eurologisticsincome.co.uk.

The Board confirms that, during the year, the Company complied with the principles and provisions of
the AIC Code and the relevant provisions of the UK Code, exceptas setoutbelow.
The UK Code includes provisions relating to:

e interaction with the workforce (provisions 2,5 and 6);

e the need foraninternal auditfunction (provision 26);

e therole and responsibility of the chief executive (provisions 9 and 14);
e previous experience of the chairman of a remuneration committee (provision 32); and
e executive directors' remuneration (provisions 33 and 36 to 40).

The Board considers that these provisions are notrelevant to the position of the Company, being an
externally managed investment company. In particular, all of the Company's day-to-day management and
administrative functions are outsourced to third parties. As a result, the Companyhas no executive
directors, employees orinternal operations. The Company has therefore not reported furtherin respect of
these provisions.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board had four scheduled meetings and a further 16 ad hoc
Board meetings as well as numerous update calls. In addition, the Audit Committee met three times and
there was one meeting of the Management Engagement Committee and one meeting of the Nomination
Committee. Between meetings the Board maintains regular contact with the Investment Manager. The
Directors have attended the following scheduled Board meetings and Committee meetings during the
yearended 31 December 2022 (with their eligibility to attend the relevant meeting in brackets):

Audit
Committee
Director Board MEC Nomination
TRoper? 4(4) N/A  1(1) 1(1)
CGulliver 4(4) 3(3) 1(1) 1(1)
D Wilde 4(4) 3(3) 1(1) 1(1)
JHeawood 4(4) 3(3) 1(1) 1(1)

B Mr Roper is not a member of the Audit Committee but attended all meetings by invitation.

Policy on Tenure

The Board's policy on tenure is that Directors need notserve on the Board fora limited period of time
only. The Board does notconsiderthatthe length of service of a Directoris as importantas the
contribution he orshe has to make, and therefore the length of service will be determined on a case-by-
case basis. However, in accordance with corporate governance best practice and the future need to refresh
the Board overtime, itis currently expected that Directors will not typically serve on the Board beyond the
Annual General Meeting following the ninth anniversary of theirappointment.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee Reportis on pages 86 to 87 of the published Annual Reportand financial statements
forthe yearended 31 December 2022.

Nomination Committee

All appointments to the Board of Directors are considered by the Nomination Committee which, due to the
relatively small size of the Board, comprises all of the Directors and is chaired by the Chairman of the
Company. The Nomination Committee advises the Board on succession planning, bearing in mind the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience existing on the Board, and will make recommendations to
the Board in this regard. The Nomination Committee also advises the Board on its balance of relevant
skills, experience and length of service of the Directors serving on the Board. The Board's overriding
priority when appointing new Directors in the future will be to identify the candidate with the bestrange
of skills and experience to complement existing Directors. The Board recognises the benefits of diversity
and its policy on diversityis disclosed in the Strategic Report.

The Committee has putin place the necessary procedures to conduct, on an annual basis,an appraisal
of the Chairman of the Board, Directors' individual self evaluation and a performance evaluation of the
Board as a whole and its Committees. In 2021 a thorough external evaluation was conducted by Lintstock
Limited, an independent third party evaluation service provider. In 2022 the Board conducted an
evaluation based upon completed questionnaires covering the Board, individual Directors, the Chairman
and the Audit Committee Chairman. The Chairman then met each Directorindividually to review their
responses whilstthe SeniorIndependent Director met with the Chairman to review his performance.

In accordance with Principle 23 of the AIC's Code of Corporate Governance which recommends thatall
directors of investment companies should be subject to annual re-election byshareholders, all the
members of the Board will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and will offer themselves for
re-election. In conjunction with the evaluation feedback, the Committee has reviewed each of the
proposed reappointments and concluded that each of the Directors has the requisite high level and range
of business and financial experience and recommends theirre-election at the forthcoming AGM. Details
of the contributions provided by each Director during the yearare disclosed on pages 72 and 73 of the
published Annual Reportand financial statements for the yearended 31 December 2022.

Management Engagement Committee

The Management Engagement Committee comprises all of the Directors and is chaired by Mr Heawood.
The Committee reviews the performance of the Managerand Investment Manager and its compliance with
the terms of the managementand secretarial agreement. The terms and conditions of the Manager's
appointment, including an evaluation of fees, are reviewed by the Committee on an annual basis. Based
upon the competitive management fee and expertise of the Manager, the Committee believes that the
continuing appointment of the Manager on the terms agreed is in the interests of shareholders as a
whole.The Committee also atleastannuallyreviews the Company's relationships with its otherservice
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providers. These reviews aim to ensure thatservices being offered meetthe requirements and needs of
the Company, provide value for money and performance is in line with the expectations of stakeholders.

Remuneration Committee

Underthe FCA Listing Rules, where an investment trust has only non-executive directors, the Code
principles relating to directors' remuneration do notapply. Accordingly, matters relating to remuneration
are dealt with by the full Board, which acts as the Remuneration Committee.

The Company's remuneration policyis to set remuneration ata level to attractindividuals of a calibre
appropriate to the Company's future development. Furtherinformation on remuneration is disclosed in
the Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 82 to 84 of the published Annual Reportand financial
statements for the yearended 31 December 2022.

Terms of Reference

The terms of reference of all the Board Committees maybe found on the Company's website
eurologisticsincome.co.uk and copies are available from the Company Secretary upon request. The terms of
reference are reviewed and re-assessed by the relevant Board Committee for theiradequacyon an
annual basis.

Going Concern

In accordance with the Financial Reporting Council's guidance the Directors have undertaken a rigorous
review of the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. The Board has setlimits for borrowing and
regularly reviews the level of any gearing, cash flow projections and compliance with banking covenants.

The Directors are mindful of the principal risks and uncertainties disclosed on pages 13 to 17 and the
Viability Statement on page 18 of the published Annual Reportand financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and have reviewed forecasts detailing revenue and liabilities and they believe
thatthe Company has adequate financial resources to continue its operational existence for the
foreseeable future and atleast 12 months from the date of this Annual Report. While the Companyis
obliged underits articles to hold a continuation vote at the 2024 AGM, the Directors do not believe this
should automatically trigger the adoption of a basis otherthan going concern in line with the Association
of Investment Companies ("AIC") Statement of Recommended Practice ("SORP") which states thatitis
usually more appropriate to prepare financial statements on a going concern basis unless a continuation
vote has alreadybeen triggered and shareholders have voted against continuation. Accordingly, the
Directors believe thatitis appropriate to continue to adoptthe going concern basis in preparing the
financial statements. In coming to this conclusion, the Board has also considered the impact, where
feasible, of the COVID-19 pandemicand other geopolitical economic turbulence. The Investment Manager
is in contact with tenants and third partysuppliers and continues to have a constructive dialogue with all
parties. Arange of scenarios have been modelled looking at possible impact to cash flows in the short to
medium term and this is keptunderregularreview. Additional details about going concern are disclosed
in Note 28.

Management of Conflicts of Interest

The Board has a procedure in place to deal with a situation where a Director has a conflict of interest. As
part of this process, the Directors prepare a list of other positions held and all other conflict situations
that mayneed to be authorised eitherin relation to the Director concerned or his/her connected persons.
The Board considers each Director's situation and decides on anycourse of action required to be taken if
there is a conflict, taking into consideration whatis in the bestinterests of the Companyand whether the
Director's abilityto actin accordance with his or her wider duties is affected. Each Directoris required to
notify the Company Secretary of any potential, or actual, conflict situations that will need authorising by
the Board. Authorisations given by the Board are reviewed at each Board meeting.

No Director has a service contract with the Company although Directors are issued with letters of
appointmentupon appointment. No Director had anyinterestin contracts with the Companyduring the
yearor subsequently.

The Board has adopted appropriate procedures designed to prevent bribery. The Company receives
periodicreports from its service providers on the anti-bribery policies of these third parties. Italso
receives regularcompliance reports from the Manager.

The Criminal Finances Act 2017 introduced the corporate criminal offence of "failing to take reasonable
steps to prevent the facilitation of taxevasion". The Board has confirmed thatitis the Company's policy to
conduct all of its business in an honestand ethical manner. The Board takes a zero-tolerance approach to
the facilitation of tax evasion, whetherunder UKlaw orunder the law of any foreign country.

Accountability and Audit

The respective responsibilities of the Directors and the auditorin connection with the financial
statements are setouton pages 85and 94 of the published Annual Reportand financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2022 respectively.

Each Director confirms that:

e sofaras heorsheis aware, thereis norelevantauditinformation of which the Company's
auditoris unaware;and,

e each Director has taken all the steps thattheyoughtto have taken as a Directorin order to make
themselves aware of anyrelevantauditinformation and to establish thatthe Company's auditor
is aware of thatinformation.

Additionallythere have been no important events since the year end thatimpact this Annual Report.

The Directors have reviewed the level of non-auditservices provided by the independentauditor during
the year amounting to £20,000 in respect of the production of a Supplementary Prospectus (2021: £45,000 in
connection with the issue of a Prospectus in September 2021) and remain satisfied that the auditor's
objectivityand independence is being safeguarded.

Independent Auditor

The auditor, KPMG LLP, has indicated its willingness to remain in office. The Directors will place a
resolution before the Annual General Meeting to re-appoint KPMG LLP as auditor for the ensuing year, and
to authorise the Directors to determine its remuneration.

Internal Control

The Board is ultimatelyresponsible for the Company's system of internal control and forreviewing its
effectiveness and confirms thatthere is an ongoing process foridentifying, evaluating and managing the
significantrisks faced by the Company. This process has been in place forthe yearunderreview and up to
the date of approval of this Annual Reportand financial statements. Itis regularly reviewed by the Board
and accords with the FRC Guidance.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control. In particular, it has reviewed
and updated the process foridentifying and evaluating the significant risks affecting the Companyand
policies by which these risks are managed.



The Directors have delegated the investment management of the Company's assets to members of the
abrdn Group within overall guidelines, and this embraces implementation of the system of internal
control, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management. Internal control
systems are monitored and supported bythe abrdn Group's internal audit function which undertakes
periodicexamination of business processes, including compliance with the terms of the management
agreement, and ensures thatrecommendations to improve controls are implemented.

Risks are identified and documented through a risk management framework by each function within
the abrdn Group's activities. Risk includes financial, regulatory, market, operational and reputational
risk. This helps the internal auditrisk assessment model identify those functions for review. Any
weaknesses identified are reported to the Board, and timetables are agreed forimplementing
improvements to systems. The implementation of anyremedial action required is monitored and
feedback provided to the Board.

The significantrisks faced by the Company have been identified as being strategic; investmentand asset
management; financial; regulatory; and operational.

The key components of the process designed by the Directors to provide effective internal control are
outlined below:

e the AIFM prepares forecasts and managementaccounts which allows the Board to assess the
Company's activities and review its performance;

e the Board and AIFM have agreed clearly defined investment criteria, specified levels of
authorityand exposure limits. Reports on these issues, including performance statistics and
investmentvaluations, are regularly submitted to the Board and there are meetings with the
AlIFM and Investment Manager as appropriate;

e as a matterof course the AIFM's compliance department continuallyreviews abrdn's operations
and reports to the Board on a six monthly basis;

e written agreements are in place which specifically define the roles and responsibilities of the
AlIFM and other third party service providers and, where relevant, ISAE3402 Reports, a global
assurance standard forreporting on internal controls for service organisations, ortheir
equivalents are reviewed;

e the Board has considered the need foran internal audit function but, because of the compliance
and internal control systems in place within abrdn, has decided to place reliance on the
Manager's systems and internal audit procedures. Atits March 2023 meeting, the Audit
Committee carried outan annual assessment of internal controls forthe yearended 31 December
2022 by considering documentation from the AIFM and the Depositary, including the internal
auditand compliance functions and taking account of events since 31 December 2022. The
results of the assessment, thatinternal controls are satisfactory, were then reported to the
Board at the subsequent Board meeting.

Internal control systems are designed to meet the Company's particular needs and the risks to which itis
exposed. Accordingly, the internal control systems are designed to manage ratherthan eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives and by theirnature can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against mis-statementand loss.

Substantial Interests
The Board has been advised that the following shareholders owned 3% or more of the issued Ordinary
share capital of the Companyat 31 December 2022 (based upon 412,174,356 shares in issue):

No. of
Ordinary
shares held
Shareholder % held
East Riding of Yorkshire 33,000,000 8.0
Brewin Dolphin Ireland 25,134,996 6.1
Quilter Cheviot Investment Management 23,062,880 5.6
BlackRock 20,587,907 5.0
Investec Wealth & Investment 17,880,116 43
Brewin Dolphin, stockbrokers 16,713,524 41
Hargreaves Lansdown (EO) 16,516,569 4.0
Canaccord Genuity Wealth Management 16,502,020 4.0
CCLA Investment Management 16,197,976 3.9
Nottinghamshire County Council 12,324,013 3.0

Save as disclosed, there have been no significant changes notified in respect of the above holdings
between 31 December 2022 and 20 April 2023.

Relations with Shareholders

The Directors place a greatdeal of importance on communication with shareholders. The Annual Report
will be widely distributed to other parties who have an interestin the Company's performance.
Shareholders and investors may obtain up to date information on the Company through the freephone
information service shown under Investor Information and on the Company's website
eurologisticsincome.co.uk.

abrdn Holdings Limited (aHL) has been appointed Company Secretary to the Company. WhilstaHLis a
whollyowned subsidiary of the abrdn Group, there is a clearseparation of roles between the Manager
and Company Secretary with different board compositions and different reporting lines in place. The
Board notes that, in accordance with Market Abuse Regulations, procedures are in place to control the
dissemination of information within the abrdn plc group of companies when necessary. Where
correspondence addressed to the Board is received there is full disclosure to the Board. This is kept
confidential if the subject matter of the correspondence requires confidentiality.

The Board's policyis to communicate directly with shareholders and theirrepresentative bodies
without the involvement of representatives of the Manager (including the Company Secretaryand
Investment

Manager) in situations where direct communication is required and usuallya representative from the
Board is available to meet with majorshareholders on an annual basis in order to gauge theirviews.

The Notice of the Annual General Meeting, included within the Annual Reportand financial statements,
is sentoutatleast20 working days in advance of the meeting. In normal circumstances, all Shareholders
have the opportunity to put questions to the Board or the Investment Manager, either formally at the
Company's Annual General Meeting oratthe subsequent buffet luncheon for Shareholders. Shareholders
are, however, invited to send any questions for the Board and/or the Investment Manager on the Annual
Report by email to European.Logistics@abrdn.com. The Company Secretaryis available to answer general
shareholder queries atanytime throughout the year.
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Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held on 12 June 2023 at11:30 a.m. at Wallacespace, 15 Artillery Lane,
London, E1 7HA. In addition to the usual resolutions the following matters will be proposed at the AGM:

Special Business Directors' Authority to Allot Relevant Securities

Approval is soughtin Resolution 10, an ordinaryresolution, to renew the Directors' existing general power
to allotshares but will also provide a further authority (subject to certain limits) to grant rights to
subscribe fororto convertanysecurityinto shares under a fully pre-emptive rights issue. The effect of
Resolution 10 is to authorise the Directors to allot up to a maximum of 272,035,075 shares in total
(representing approximately 66% (as at the latest practicable date before publication of this Annual
Report) of the existing issued share capital of the Company), of which a maximum of 136,017,537 shares
(approximately 33% (as atthe latest practicable date before publication of this Annual Report) of the
existing issued share capital of the Company) mayonlybe applied otherthan to fully pre-emptive rights
issues. This authorityis renewable annuallyand will expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting in 2024, or 30 June 2024, whicheveris earlier. The Directors do not have anyimmediate intention
to utilise this authority.

Special Business Disapplication of Pre-emption Rights

Resolution 11is a special resolution thatseeks to renew the Directors' existing authority until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting to make limited allotments of shares forcash of up to a
maximum of 41,217,435 shares representing 10% of the issued share capital (as atthe latest practicable
date before publication of this Annual Report) other than according to the statutory pre-emption rights
which require all shares issued for cash to be offered firstto all existing shareholders.

This authorityincludes the ability to sell shares that have been held in treasury (if any), having previously
been bought back by the Company. The Board has established guidelines for treasuryshares and will only
considerbuyingin shares fortreasuryata discount to their prevailing NAV and selling them from treasury
atorabove the then prevailing NAV.

New shares issued in accordance with the authority soughtin Resolution 11 will always be issued ata
premium to the NAV per Ordinary share atthe time of issue. The Board will issue new Ordinaryshares or
sell Ordinary shares from treasury for cash when itis appropriate to do so, in accordance with its current
policy. Itis therefore possible thatthe issued share capital of the Company maychange between the date
of this document and the Annual General Meeting and therefore the authority sought will be in respect of
10% of the issued share capital as atthe date of the Annual General Meeting rather than the date of this
document. This authorityis renewable annuallyand will expire atthe conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting in 2024 or 30 June 2024, whicheveris earlier.

Special Business Purchase of the Company's Shares

Resolution 12 is a special resolution proposing to renew the Directors' authority to make market
purchases of the Company's shares in accordance with the provisions contained in the Companies Act
2006 and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority. The minimum price to be paid per Ordinary
share bythe Companywill not be less than £0.01 pershare (being the nominal value) and the maximum
price should not be more than the higherof (i) an amountequal to 5% above the average of the middle
market quotations foran Ordinaryshare taken from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the
five business days immediately preceding the date on which the Ordinaryshare is contracted to be
purchased; and (ii) the higher of the price of the lastindependenttrade and the current highest
independentbid on the trading venue where the purchase is carried out.

The Directors do notintend to use this authority to purchase the Company's Ordinaryshares unless to do
so would resultin anincrease in NAV pershare and would be in the interests of Shareholders generally.
The authority sought will be in respect of 14.99% of the issued share capital as atthe date of the Annual
General Meeting ratherthan the date of this document.

The Company's shares have traded ata premium to NAV per share for the majority of the life of the
Companysince its launch, and therefore the Companyhas not bought back anyshares fortreasuryor
cancellation. However, the Board is very aware of the current wide share price discount to NAV and
regularly monitors this. The Directors view buybacks as a very useful tool forseeking to assistin the
management of the liquidity of the Companyshares which could be used in the future as one of a
number of methods to address imbalances of supplyand demand which, arithmetically, can cause
discounts to NAV pershare. Shares bought back would be purchased ata discountto the prevailing NAV
pershare and the result would be accretive to the NAV for all on-going shareholders.

The authority being sought will expire atthe conclusion of the Annual General Meeting in 2024 or 30
June 2024, whicheveris earlierunless itis renewed before that date. Any Ordinary shares purchased in
this way will either be cancelled and the number of Ordinary shares will be reduced accordingly orunder
the authority granted in Resolution 11 above, maybe held in treasury. If Resolutions 10 to 12 are passed
then an announcement will be made on the date of the Annual General Meeting which will detail the
exact number of Ordinary shares to which each of these authorities relates.

These powers will give the Directors additional flexibility going forward and the Board considers thatit
will be in the interests of the Companythatsuch powers be available. Such powers will only be
implemented when, in the view of the Directors, to do so will be to the benefit of Shareholders as a
whole.

Special Business Notice of Meetings

Resolution 13 is a special resolution seeking to authorise the Directors to call general meetings of the
Company (otherthan Annual General Meetings) on 14 days' clear notice. This approval will be effective
until the Company's Annual General Meeting in 2024 or 30 June 2024 whicheveris earlier. In order to
utilise this shorter notice period, the Companyis required to ensure that Shareholders are able to vote
electronicallyatthe general meeting called on such short notice. The Directors confirm that, in the event
thata general meetingis called, they will give as much notice as practicable and will only utilise the
authority granted by Resolution 13 in limited and time sensitive circumstances.

Dividend Policy

As a result of the timing of the payment of the Company's quarterly dividends, the Company's
Shareholders are unable to approve a final dividend each year. In line with good corporate governance,
the Board therefore proposes to putthe Company's dividend policy to Shareholders forapproval at the
Annual General Meeting and on an annual basis.

Resolution 3is an ordinaryresolution to approve the Company's dividend policy. The Company's dividend
policyshall be thatdividends on the Ordinaryshares are payable quarterlyin relation to periods ending
March, June, Septemberand December and the lastdividend referable to a financial year end will not be
categorised as a final dividend thatis subject to Shareholderapproval. Itis intended thatthe Company
will payquarterly dividends consistent with the expected annual underlying portfolio yield. The Company
has the flexibilityin accordance with its Articles to make distributions from capital.

Shareholders should note thatreferences to ""dividends' are intended to cover both dividend income and
income which is designated as an interestdistribution for UK tax purposes and therefore subject to the
interest streaming regime applicable to investment trusts.

Recommendation
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as a whole and mostlikely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a
whole. Accordingly, your Board unanimously recommends that Shareholders should vote in favour of
all Resolutions to be proposed atthe AGM, as theyintend to do in respect of their own beneficial
shareholdings amounting to 309,687 Ordinary shares.

By order of the Board

abrdn Holdings Limited - Company Secretary
280 Bishopsgate
London EC2M 4AG

20 April 2023

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities in Respect
of the Annual Report and the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Reportand the Group and parent Company
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Companylaw requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent Companyfinancial statements foreach
financial year. Underthatlaw theyare required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance
with UK-adopted international accounting standards and applicable law and have elected to prepare the
parent Company financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law,
including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the Directors must notapprove the financial statements unless theyare satisfied that
theygive a true and fairview of the state of affairs of the Group and parent Companyand of the Group's
profit orloss forthat period. In preparing each of the Group and parent Companyfinancial statements,
the Directors are required to:

e selectsuitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. make judgements and estimates thatare reasonable, relevant, reliable and prudent;

e forthe Group financial statements, state whetherthey have been prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted international accounting standards;

e forthe parent Companyfinancial statements, state whetherapplicable UKaccounting standards
have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the parent
Company financial statements;

e assess the Group and parent Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern; and

e use the going concern basis of accounting unless theyeitherintend to liquidate the Group or

the parent Companyorto cease operations, or have no realistic alternative butto do so.
The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records thatare sufficient to show and
explain the parent Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracyatanytime the
financial position of the parent Companyand enable them to ensure thatits financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is
necessaryto enable the preparation of financial statements thatare free from material misstatement,
whetherdue to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably
open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to preventand detect fraud and other
irregularities.

Underapplicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic
Report, Directors' Report, Directors' Remuneration Reportand Corporate Governance Statement that
complies with thatlaw and those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the Company's website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

In accordance with Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule 4.1.14R, the financial statements will
form part of the annual financial report prepared using the single electronic reporting format under the
TD ESEF Regulation. The auditor's report on these financial statements provides no assurance over the
ESEF format.

Responsibility statement of the Directors in respect of the annual financial report
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

e the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting
standards, give a true and fairview of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profitorloss
of the companyand the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole; and

e the Strategic Report/Directors' Reportincludes a fairreview of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the issuerand the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that theyface.

We consider the Annual Reportand financial statements, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary forshareholders to assess the Group's position
and performance, business model and strategy.

By order of the Board

Tony Roper,
20 April 2023

Financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Year ended 31 December 2022 Year ended 31 December 2021
Revenue Capital Total €'000 Revenue €'000 Capital Total €'000
€'000 €'000 €'000

Notes

REVENUE



Rental income

2 29,686 - 29,686 23,283 - 23,283
Property service charge income 6,237 - 6,237 3,435 - 3,435
Other operating income 676 - 676 219 - 219
Total Revenue 36,599 - 36,599 26,937 - 26,937
GAINS ON INVESTMENTS
(Losses)/Gains on revaluation of investment properties 9 - (40,432) (40,432) - 41,031 41,031
Total Income and (losses)/gains on investments 36,599 (40,432) (3,833) 26,937 41,031 67,968
EXPENDITURE
Investment management fee (3,953) - (3,953) (2,756) - (2,756)
Direct property expenses (2,501) - (2,501) (1,851) - (1,851)
Property service charge expenditure (6,237) - (6,237) (3,435) - (3,435)
SPV property management fees (255) - (255) (371) - (371)
Other expenses 3 (2,797) - (2,797) (1,735) - (1,735)
Total expenditure (15,743) - (15,743) (10,148) - (10,148)
Net operating return before finance costs 20,856 (40,432) (19,576) 16,789 41,031 57,820
FINANCE COSTS
Finance costs 4 (5,676) - (5,676) (3,449) - (3,449)

- 3,600 3,600 - - -

Effect of fair value adjustments on derivative financial instruments
Effect of foreign exchange differences (115) 461 346 264 753 1,017
Net return before taxation 15,065 (36,371) (21,306) 13,604 41,784 55,388
Taxation 5 (1,029) 3,893 2,864 (651) (10,294) (10,945)
Net return for the year 14,036 (32,478) (18,442) 12,953 31,490 44,443
Total comprehensive return for the year 14,036 (32,478) (18,442) 12,953 31,490 44,443
Basic and diluted earnings per share 7 3.43¢ (7.94¢) (4.51¢) 4.50¢ 10.93¢ 15.43¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
The total column of the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income is the profitand loss account

of the Group. All revenue and capital items in the above statement derive from continuing operations. No
operations were acquired ordiscontinued during the year.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

For the year ended 31 December 2022

As at 31 December 2022

As at 31 December 2021

Total Total €'000
€'000
Notes
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investment properties
776,616 683,878

Deferred tax asset 3,754 2,978
Total non-current assets 780,370 686,856
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables 10 12,570 11,175
Cash and cash equivalents 11 20,262 23,280
Other assets 687 6,966
Derivative financial instruments 15 3,894 109
Total current assets 37,413 41,530
Total assets 817,783 728,386
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank loans 14 - 15,500
Lease liability 12 550 550
Trade and other payables 13 15,006 14,466



Derivative financial instruments 15 185

Total current liabilities 15,741 30,516
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank loans 14 265,532 160,447
Lease liability 12 22,087 22,355
Deferred tax liability 5 24,446 27,563
Total non-current lial 312,065 210,365
Total liabilities 327,806 240,881
Net assets 489,977 487,505
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 16 4,717 4,309
Share premium 17 269,546 225,792
Special distributable reserve 18 164,851 178,207
Capital reserve 19 30,780 63,258
Revenue reserve 20,083 15,939
Equity shareholders' funds 489,977 487,505
Net asset value per share 8 €1.19 €129
The Financial Statements on pages 95 to 137 of the published Annual Reportand financial statements
forthe yearended 31 December 2022 were approved and authorised forissue by the Board of
Directors on 20 April 2023 and signed on its behalf by:
Caroline Gulliver
Independent Non-Executive Director
Companynumber: 11032222.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Special distributable
reserve €'000
Share
Share capital premium Capital reserve Revenue Total
Notes €'000 €'000 €'000 reserve €'000 €'000
Balance at 31 December 2021 4,309 225,792 178,207 63,258 15,939 487,505
Share Issue 16/17 408 44,513 - - - 44,921
Share Issue costs 17 - (759) - - - (759)
Total Comprehensive return for the year - - - (32,478) 14,036 (18,442)
Dividends paid 6 - - (13,356) - (9,892) (23,248)
Balance at 31 December 2022 4,717 269,546 164,851 30,780 20,083 489,977
For the year ended 31 December 2021
Special distributable
reserve €'000
Share
Share capital premium Capital reserve Revenue Total
Notes €'000 €'000 { reserve €'000 €'000
Balance at 31 December 2020 2,756 61,691 185,661 31,768 11,720 293,596
Share Issue 16/17 1,553 166,924 - - - 168,477
Share Issue costs 17 - (2,823) - - - (2,823)
Total Comprehensive return for the year - - - 31,490 12,953 44,443
Dividends paid 6 - - (7,454) - (8,734) (16,188)
Balance at 31 December 2021 4,309 225,792 178,207 63,258 15,939 487,505
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021 €'000
€'000
Notes
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net return for the year before taxation
(21,306) 55,388

Adjustments for:



(Losses)/Gains on investment properties

40,432 (41,031)
Land Leasehold Liability decreases 267 265
Decrease/(Increase) in operating trade and other receivables 4,964 (9,089)
(Decrease)/Increase in operating trade and other payables (1,554) 2,939
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments (3,600) -
Finance costs 4 5,676 3,449
Tax paid (1,070) (472)
Cash generated by operations 23,809 11,449
Net cash inflow from operating activities 23,809 11,449
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment properties (133,523) (193,475)
Derivative financial instruments - (83)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (133,523) (193,558)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid 6 (23,248) (16,188)
Bank loans interest paid (3,050) (1,311)
Bank loans drawn 154,547 68,860
Bank loans repaid (65,692) (36,500)
Proceeds from share issue 16/17 44,898 168,477
Issue costs relating to share issue 17 (759) (2,823)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 106,696 180,515
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,018) (1,594)
Opening balance 23,280 24,874
Closing cash and cash equivalents 20,262 23,280
REPRESENTED BY
Cash at bank 11 20,262 23,280

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the yearended 31 December 2022 comprise the
results of abrdn European Logistics Income plcand its subsidiaries. The principal accounting policies
adopted bythe Group are setout below, all of which have been applied consistently throughout the year.

(a) Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards ("UK-adopted IFRS"), which comprise standards and interpretations approved by the
International Accounting Standards Board ('IASB'), and International Accounting Standards and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved by the International Accounting Standards Committee
("IASC') thatremain in effect, and to the extent that they have been adopted by the United Kingdom, and
the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared under the historical cost
convention as modified by the measurement of investment property and derivative financial

instruments atfairvalue. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Euro.

In compliance with the AIC's Statement of Recommended Practice: Financial Statements of Investment
Trust Companies and Venture Capital Trusts (Issued November 2014 and updated in October 2019 with
consequential amendments), the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is separated
between capital and revenue profits and losses.

New and revised standards and interpretations issued in the current year

The accounting policies adopted have been consistentlyapplied throughout the year presented, unless
otherwise stated. This includes the below noted Standards, Interpretations and annual improvements to
IFRS that became effective during the year, which the group has incorporated in the preparation of the
financial statements:

e Amendments to IAS 37 relating to Onerous Contracts effective 1 January 2022.
e Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 3 (effective 1 January

2022). The amendmentrefers to the Conceptual Framework issued in 2018 under
whirh the definition nf liahilitiec ic hrnaderthan thatin the nrevinus vercinns
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e Amendments to IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment ('PPE')-Proceeds before Intended Use
(effective date 1January2022). The amendments prohibita Companyfrom deducting from the
costof an item of PPE anyproceeds from selling items produced while making thatitem of PPE
available forits intended use.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (effective 1 January 2022):

IFRS 1 - Subsidiaryas a first- time adopter. The amendment permits a subsidiarythatapplies paragraph
D16(a) of IFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by its parent,
based on the parent's date of transition to IFRSs.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - Fees in the '10 per cent' test for derecognition of financial liabilities.

The amendment clarifies which fees an entityincludes when itapplies the '10 percent' testin paragraph
B3.3.6 of IFRS 9in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. An entityincludes onlyfees paid
orreceived between the entity (borrower) and the lender, including fees paid orreceived by either the
entity orthe lender on the other's behalf.

IFRS 16 - Leases - Lease incentives. The amendment to the Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16
removes from the example the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessorin
order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that mightarise
because of how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

The Group has made no adjustments to its financial statements following the above listed amendments
and hence these are notdiscussed further.

Standard and Interpretations issued by IASB but not adopted by the United Kingdom and not yet effective:
Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to introduce a new
definition foraccounting estimates (effective date 1January 2023).

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Statements 2 Making
Materiality Judgements (effective date 1 January 2023).

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes - Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single
Transaction (effective date 1January 2023).

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts - Establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of insurance contracts (effective date 1 January 2023).

The Group has notadopted any of these earlyand none are expected to have a material impact on the
financial statements of the group.

(b) Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires the directors to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts recognised in the financial statements and contingent
liabilities. However, uncertainty about these judgements, assumptions and estimates could resultin
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assetorliability affected
in future periods.

Key estimation uncertainties

Fairvalue of investment properties: Investment propertyis stated atfairvalue as atthe balance sheet
date as setoutin note 9to these financial statements.

The determination of the fairvalue of investment properties requires the use of estimates such as
future cash flows from the assets, estimated inflation, marketrents, discount, capitalisation rates,
estimated rental value and netinitial and netequivalent propertyyields. The estimate of future cash
flows includes consideration of the repairand condition of the property, lease terms, future lease
events,as well as otherrelevant factors for the particularasset.

These estimates are based on local market conditions existing atthe balance sheetdate.

(c) Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Companyand its subsidiaries drawn
up to 31 December 2022, and are prepared on a going concern basis. Subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred out of the Group. The Group acquires subsidiaries that own real estate properties.
At the time of acquisition, the Group considers whetherthe acquisition represents the acquisition of a
business. The Group accounts foran acquisition as a business combination where an integrated set of
activities is acquired in addition to the property. More specifically, consideration is made with regard to
the extentto which significant processes are acquired and, in particular, the extent of ancillaryservices
provided by the Group (e.g. maintenance, cleaning, security, bookkeeping, hotel services, and the like).
The significance of any process is judged with reference to the guidance in IAS 40 on ancillaryservices.
When the acquisition of subsidiaries does notrepresenta business, itis accounted foras an acquisition
of a group of assets and liabilities. The cost of the acquisition is allocated to the assets and liabilities
acquired based upon theirrelative fairvalues, and no goodwill or deferred taxis recognised.

See note 28 for further details on going concern.

(d) Functional and Presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environmentin which the Companyand its subsidiaries operate ("the functional
currency") which in the judgement of the Directors is Euro. The financial statements are also presented in
Euro. All figures in the consolidated financial statements are rounded to the nearest thousand unless
otherwise stated.

(e) Foreign Currency

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are converted at the exchange rate ruling at the date

of the transaction. Monetary and non-monetaryassets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies held at the financial yearend are translated using the foreign exchange rate ruling at that
date. Anygain orloss arising from a change in exchange rates subsequent to the date of the

transaction is included as an exchange gain orloss to capital orrevenue in the Consolidated

Statement of Comprehensive Income as appropriate. Foreign exchange movements on investments are
included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income within gains on investments.

(f) Revenue Recognition

Rental income, including the effect of lease incentives, arising from operating leases (including those
containing fixed rentincreases) is recognised on a straightline basis over the lease term.

Service charge income represents the charge to tenants forservices the Group is obliged to provide under
lease agreements. This income is recorded gross within Income on the basis the Group is acting as
principal, with any corresponding cost shown within expenses.

Interestincome is accounted for on an effective interest rate basis.

(g) Expenses

All expenses, including the management fee, are accounted for on an accruals basis and are recorded
through the revenue column of the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains orlosses on
investment properties are recorded in the capital column.

(h) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Currenttaxis defined as the expected tax payable orreceivable on the taxable income orloss for the
year, using taxrates enacted orsubstantively enacted atthe balance sheetdate, and anyadjustment to
tax payable inrespectof previous years.



Where corporation taxarises in subsidiaries, these amounts are charged to the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income. The currentincome tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted orsubstantively enacted atthe date of the balance sheetin the countries where the Group
operates.

The Manager periodically evaluates positions taken in taxreturns with respect to situations in which
applicable taxregulation is subjectto interpretation, and establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxis recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised forall taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generallyrecognised forall deductible temporary differences to the
extentthatitis probable thattaxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred taxassets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (otherthan in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neitherthe taxable profit northe accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are notrecognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured atthe taxrates thatare expected to applyin the yearin
which the liabilityis settled orthe assetrealised, based on taxrates (and taxlaws) that have been
enacted orsubstantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the mannerin which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

The carrying values of the Group's investment properties are assumed to be realised bysale atthe end of
use.

The capital gains tax rate applied is that which would apply on a direct sale of the property recorded in
the Consolidated Balance Sheet regardless of whether the Group would structure the sale via the
disposal of the subsidiary holding the asset, to which a different tax rate may apply. The deferred tax is
then calculated based on the respective temporary differences and tax consequences arising from
recovery through sale, and accounted for through the capital reserve. (i) Investment Properties

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost, being the fairvalue of consideration given,
including transaction costs associated with the investment property. Anysubsequent capital expenditure
incurred in improving investment properties is capitalised in the year during which the expenditure is
incurred.

Afterinitial recognition, investment properties are measured atfairvalue, with the movementin fair
value recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and transferred to the

Capital Reserve. Fairvalue is based on the external valuation provided by Savills (2021: Savills and

CBRE), chartered surveyors, atthe balance sheetdate undertaken in accordance with the RICS

Valuation - Global Standards 2022, (Red Book), published by the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors. The assessed fairvalue is reduced by the carrying amount of anyaccrued income resulting
from the spreading of lease incentives and/or minimum lease payments.

On derecognition, gains and losses on disposals of investment properties are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(j) Distributions

Interim distributions payable to the holders of equity shares are recognised in the Statement of Changes
in Equityin the yearin which theyare paid. An annual shareholderresolution is voted upon to approve
the Group's distribution policy.

(k) Lease Contracts

Operating Lease Contracts - the Group as Lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group
has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, thatitretains
all the significantrisks and rewards of ownership of these properties and so accounts forleases as
operating leases.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased assetand recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Operating and Finance Lease Contracts - the Group as intermediate lessor

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts forits interestin the head lease and the sub-lease
separately. The Group assesses all leases where itacts as an intermediate lessor, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements.

Any head leases identified as finance leases are capitalised atthe lease commencement presentvalue
of the minimum lease payments discounted atan applicable discountrate as a right-of-use assetand
leasehold liability. Each lease paymentis allocated between the liabilityand finance charges so as to
achieve a constantrate on the finance balance outstanding. The interest element of the finance costis
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the lease period.

(1) Share Issue Expenses

Incremental external costs directly attributable to the issue of shares that would otherwise have been
avoided are written off to share premium.

(m) Segmental Reporting

The Group is engaged in propertyinvestmentin Europe. Operating results are analysed on a geographic
basis by country. In accordance with IFRS 8 'Operating Segments', financial information on business
segments is presented in note 20 of the Consolidated financial statements.

(n) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposits, and other short-term highly
liquid investments readily convertible within three months or less to known amounts of cash and subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value. (o) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured atfairvalue. Transaction costs thatare
directly attributable to the acquisition orissue of financial assets and financial liabilities (otherthan
financial assets and financial liabilities atfairvalue through profitorloss) are added to or deducted
from the fairvalue of the financial assets orfinancial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets orfinancial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediatelyin the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Financial assets

Financial assets are measured atamortised cost, financial assets 'atfairvalue through profit orloss'
(FVTPL), orfinancial assets 'atfairvalue through other comprehensive income' (FVOCI). The
classification is based on the business model in which the financial assetis managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics. All purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date basis.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets atamortised cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed ordeterminable
payments thatare not quoted in an active market.
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Loans ana recelvapies (INCluding trade ana otnerreceivapies, ana otners) are supsequentuy measurea at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less anyimpairment. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group's financial assets are subject to the expected creditloss model. For trade receivables, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of tenants over a period of twelve months before the measurement date, and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect
currentand forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the liability of the tenants to
settle the receivable.

Such forward-looking information would include:

e significantfinancial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
e breach of contract, such as a defaultordelinquencyin interest or principal payments; or
e itbecoming probable thatthe borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market forthatfinancial assetbecause of financial
difficulties. The Group's financial assets are subject to the expected credit loss model. For
trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of tenants overa period of twelve
months before the measurement date, and the corresponding historical creditlosses
experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect currentand
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the liability of the tenants to
settle the receivable. Such forward-looking information would include:

o changes in economic, regulatory, technological and environmental factors, (such as industry
outlook, GDP, employment and politics);

e external marketindicators;and

e tenantbase.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as 'other financial liabilities'.
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liabilityand of allocating interest expense over
the relevantyear. The effective interestrate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees paid orreceived thatform an integral part of the effective interestrate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the netcarrying amounton initial recognition.
(p) Derivative financial instruments
The Company used forward foreign exchange contracts to mitigate potential volatility of income returns
and to provide greater certainty as to the level of Sterling distributions expected to be paid in respect of
the year covered by the relevant currency hedging instrument. It does not seek to provide a long-term
hedge forthe Company's income returns, which will continue to be affected by movements in the
Euro/Sterling exchange rate over the longer term.
The Companyused interestrate SWAPs and interest rate caps to mitigate potential volatilityin interest
rates and income returns. Derivatives are measured at fairvalue calculated by reference to forward
exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles. Changes in the fairvalue of derivatives are
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
(q) Reserves
Share Capital
This represents the proceeds from issuing Ordinary shares and is non-distributable.

Share Premium

Share premium represents the excess consideration received over the parvalue of Ordinaryshares issued
and is classified as equityand is non-distributable. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
Ordinaryshares are recognised as a deduction from share premium.

Special Distributable Reserve

The special reserve is a distributable reserve to be used forall purposes permitted byapplicable
legislation and practice, including the buyback of shares and the payment of dividends.

Capital Reserve
The capital reserve is a distributable reserve subject to applicable legislation and practice, and the
following are accounted forin this reserve:
e gains andlosses on the disposal of investment properties;
e increases and decreases in the fairvalue of investment properties held atthe year end, which
are not distributable.
Revenue Reserve

The revenue reserve is a distributable reserve and reflects anysurplus arising from the netreturn on
ordinary activities after taxation.

2. Rental Income

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
€'000 €'000
Rental income 29,686 23,283
Total rental income 29,686 23,283

Included within rental income is amortisation of rent free periods granted.

3. Expenditure

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
€'000 €'000
Professional fees 1,880 656
Directors' fees 186 182
317 275

Audit fee for statutory services



Other expenses 219 382

Broker fees 54 69
Depositary fees 44 44
Stock exchange fees 20 66
Directors liabilityinsurance expense 10 3
Registrar fees 52 43
Employer's NI 15 15
Total expenses 2,797 1,735

4. Finance Costs

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
€'000 €'000
Interest on bank loans 4,262 2,587
Bank interest 684 606
Amortisation of loan costs 730 256
Total finance costs 5,676 3,449

5. Taxation

The Companyis residentin the United Kingdom for tax purposes. The Companyis approved by HMRC as an
investment trust undersections 1158 and 1159 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010. In respect of each
accounting year for which the Company continues to be approved by HMRC as an investment trust the
Company will be exempt from UK taxation on its capital gains. The Companyis, however, liable to UK
Corporation taxon its income. The Companyis able to elect to take advantage of modified UK tax
treatmentin respect of its "qualifying interestincome' foran accounting year referred to as the
"'streaming' regime. Underregulations made pursuant to the Finance Act 2009, the Company may, ifitso
chooses, designate as an "interestdistribution' all or part of the amountitdistributes to Shareholders
as dividends, to the extent thatit has "qualifying interestincome'' for the accounting year. Were the
Companyto designate anydividend it pays in this manner, itwould be able to deduct such interest
distributions from its income in calculating its taxable profit for the relevant accounting year. The
Companyshould in practice be exempt from UK corporation tax on dividend income received, provided that
such dividends (whether from UK or non-UK companies) fall within one of the '"exemptclasses' in Part 9A
of the CTA 2010. In March 2021 the UK Government confirmed an increase in the Corporation Tax Rate from
19% to 25% from 1 April 2023. This will not affect the Company's ability to take advantage of the streaming
regime as it currently does.

(a) Tax charge in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2022 Year ended 31 December 2021
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Current taxation:
Overseas taxation
1,029 - 1,029 651 - 651
Deferred taxation:
Overseas taxation - (3,893) (3,893) - 10,294 10,294
Total taxation 1,029 (3,893) (2,864) 651 10,294 10,945

Reconciliation between the tax charge and the product of accounting profit/(loss) multiplied by the
applicable taxrate forthe yearended 31 December 2022.

Year ended 31 December 2022 Year ended 31 December 2021
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
Netresult before taxation 15,065 (36,371) (21,306) 13,604 41,784 55,388
Theoretical taxat UK corporation tax 2,862 (6,910) (4,048) 2,585 7,939 10,524
rate of 19% (2021: 20%)
Effect of:
Losses where no deferred taxes have
been recognised
- 3,171 3,171 229 - 229
Impact of different taxrates on foreign (1,090) - (1,090) 1,262 2,355 3,617
jurisdictions
Other 151 (154) (3) (2,602) - (2,602)
Impact of UKinterest distributions from (894) - (894) (823) - (823)
the Investment Trust
Total taxation on return 1,029 (3,893) (2,864) 651 10,294 10,945
(b) Tax in the Group Balance Sheet
Year ended Year ended

31 December 2022 €'000 31 December 2021 €'000

Deferred taxassets:

On tax losses
3,384 2,828

On othertemporary differences 370 150

Total taxation 3,754 2,978



Year ended

Year ended

31 December 2022 €'000 31 December 2021 €'000

Deferred tax liabilities:

Differences between tax base and derivative valuation

973 -
Differences between taxbase and propertyvaluation 23,473 27,563
Total taxation 24,446 27,563
Taxlosses for which deferred taxasset was recognised expire as follows:
2022 2021
Tax losses Tax losses
carried carried
forward Deferred forward Deferred
tax asset Expiry date tax asset  Expiry date
Expire 2,564 432 2023-2027 4,430 714 2023-2027
Never expire 12,130 2,952 - 8,490 2,114 -
Total 14,694 3,384 12,920 2,828
In March 2021 the UK Government announced the UK Corporation tax rate is to remain at 19% until April
2023, atwhich pointitwill be increased to 25%. This is not expected to have a material impact on the
Group.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised (2021: nil) on estimated UK tax losses.
The Group has subsidiaries in France, Germany, Netherlands, Poland and Spain. There are no changes to
taxrates in each country expected to have a material impact on the Group.
6. Dividends
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
€'000 €'000
2021 Fourth interim dividend of 1.41c /1.21p per Share paid 5,812 3,447
25 March 2022
(2020 Fourth Interim: 1.41c /1.24p)
2022 Firstinterim dividend of 1.41¢/1.19p per Share paid 5,812 3,708
24 June 2022
(2021 First Interim: 1.41c /1.21p)
2022 Second interim dividend of 1.41¢/1.20p per Share paid 5,812 3,708
23 September 2022
(2021 Second interim: 1.41c/1.21p)
2022 Third interim dividend of 1.41¢/1.20p per Share paid 5,812 5,325
30 December 2022
(2021 Third interim: 1.41c/1.21p)
Total Dividends Paid 23,248 16,188

A fourth interim dividend of 1.41¢/1.20p per share was paid on 24 March 2023 to Shareholders on the
register on 3 March 2023. Although this payment relates to the yearended 31 December 2022, under
IFRS it will be accounted forin the yearin which it has been paid.

7. Earnings per Share (Basic and Diluted)

Year ended 31 December

Year ended 31 December

2022 2021
Revenue netreturn attributable to Ordinary shareholders (€'000) 14,036 12,953
Weighted average number of shares inissue during the year 408,956,423 288,114,820
Total revenue return per ordinary share 3.43¢ 4.50¢
Capital return attributable to Ordinary shareholders (€'000) (32,478) 31,490
Weighted average number of shares inissue during the year 408,956,423 288,114,820
Total capital return per ordinary share (7.94¢) 10.93¢
Earnings per ordinary share (4.51¢) 15.43¢
Earnings per Share is calculated on the revenue and capital return for the year (before other
comprehensive income) and is calculated using the weighted average number of Shares in the year of
408,956,423 Shares (2021: 288,114,820 Shares).
8. Net Asset Value Per Share
2022 2021
Net assets attributable to shareholders (€'000) 489,977 487,505
Number of shares inissue at 31 December 412,174,356 377,628,901
Net asset value per share (€) 1.19 1.29
9. Investment Properties
2022 2021
€'000 €'000




Opening carrying value 683,878 448,418
Purchase at cost 128,278 191,877
Acquisition costs and capital expenditure 4,892 2,552
Valuation (losses)/gains (40,304) 40,683
Decrease in leasehold liability 180 265
Movements in lease incentives (308) 83
Total carrying value at 31 December 776,616 683,878

Valuation Methodology

Valuations were performed by Savills (2021: Savills and CBRE), an accredited independentvaluer with a
recognised and relevant professional qualification. The valuer has sufficient currentlocal and national
knowledge of the particular property markets involved and has the skills and understanding to undertake
the valuations competently.

The Investment Manager appoints a suitable valuer (such appointmentis reviewed on a periodic basis) to
undertake a valuation of all the directreal estate investments on a quarterly basis. The valuation is
undertaken in accordance with the RICS Valuation - Global Standards ('Red Book Global Standards')
effective from 31 January 2022, published by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

The Investment Manager meets with the valueron a quarterly basis to ensure the valueris aware of all
relevantinformation for the valuation and anychange in the investments over the quarter. The Investment
Managerthen reviews and discusses draft valuations with the valuerto ensure correct factual
assumptions are made priorto the valuerissuing a final valuation report.

The fairvalue of completed investment propertyis determined using either the discounted cash flow or
traditional method. Discounted Cash Flow method is based on the future annual net operating income
overa hold period of 10 years. Growth and inflation are included explicitlyin the cash flow forecast. The
valuercalculates the presentvalue of cashflow generated by the investment property plus the present
value of the exitvalue atthe end of the 10-year hold period. The cash flow is discounted at a rate the
valuer considers appropriate forthe specificinvestment property. Where known, the propertyvaluer takes
account of deleterious materials included in the construction of the investment properties in arriving at
its estimate of fairvalue when the Investment Manager advises of the presence of such materials. The
majority of the leases are on a full repairing and insurance basis and as such the Group is notliable for
costs in respect of repairs or maintenance to its investment properties. The traditional method requires
an assessmentofrental value (the marketrent) and a market-based yield. The yield can be simply
defined as the annual return on investment expressed as a percentage of capital value. The traditional
method can reflectincome streams which are under-rented and over-rented by incorporating risk within
the yield choice (i.e., an all risks yield) and by structuring the calculation appropriately, forexample a
term and reversion forunder-rented income streams and a hardcore and top-slice for over-rented income
streams. This will require the valuer to reflectrisk in each element of the calculation, e.g., increasing the
yield above the marketin the top-slice to reflect the added risk of an above marketrent being paid fora
specified period, orreducing the yield in the term to reflect thata below marketrentis being paid until
the reversion is due. These 'traditional' approaches are typically referred to as being growth implicit,
meaning thatrental growth is builtinto the choice of yield and not explicitly modelled within the
calculation. As at 31 December 2022 the German, French, Polish and Spanish assets were valued using the
discounted cash flow method, and Netherlands properties using the traditional method. The fairvalue of
investment properties amounted to €758,719,000. The difference between the fairvalue and the value per
the Consolidated Balance Sheetat 31 December 2022 consists of adjustments forlease incentive assets
and the Den Hoorn lease liability separately recognised in the balance sheet of £4,740,000 and £22,637,000
respectively. Further details of the Den Hoorn lease are disclosed in note 12.

The following disclosure is provided in relation to the adoption of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. All
properties are deemed Level 3 for the purposes of fairvalue measurementand the current use of each
propertyis considered the highestand bestuse.

Fair Value Key Unobservable inputs
€'000
Country and sector Valuation techniques Range (weighted average)

Netherlands - Logistics 227,800 Traditional Method ERV €561,744 - €2,942,598

(€2,014,129)
Equivalentyield 3.70% - 4.71% (4.15%)
Germany - Logistics 68,170 Discounted Cash Flow Capitalisation rate 4.10% - 4.25% (4.16%)
Discount rate 4.95% - 5.20% (5.05%)
ERV €1,282,212 - €1,874,346

(€1,644,685)
France - Logistics 107,390 Discounted Cash Flow Capitalisation rate 3.50% - 4.30% (4.08%)
Discount rate 4.65% - 7.30% (5.90%)
ERV €430,900 - €2,016,869

(€1,380,297)
Poland - Logistics 93,600 Discounted Cash Flow Capitalisation rate 5.30% - 5.70% (5.48%)
Discount rate 6.80% - 7.35% (7.03%)
ERV €1,620,954 - €1,852,180

(€1,709,416)
Spain - Logistics 261,759 Discounted Cash Flow Capitalisation rate 3.75% - 6.00% (4.11%)

Discountrate

4.75% - 8.50% (5.53%)

ERV

€464,624 - €2,568,852
(€1,503,010)

Sensitivity Analysis

The table below presents the sensitivity of the valuation to changes in the mostsignificantassumptions
underlying the valuation of investment property.

All non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred taxassets and trade receivables are

non-UKbased.

Effect on Valuation

€'000



Country and sector Assumption Movement
Netherlands - Logistics Equivalent Yield & ERV +100 basis points Equivalent Yield / -10% ERV (59,734)
-100 basis points Equivalent Yield / +10% ERV 90,862
Germany - Logistics Capitalisation and +100 basis points (101,810)
oo Discount
France - Logistics -100 basis points 163,035
Poland - Logistics
ERV -10% ERV (17,454)
Spain - Logistics
+10% ERV 15,248

10.Trade and Other Receivables

2022 2021
€'000 €'000
Trade receivables 8,070 5,981
Bad debts provision (634) (432)
VAT receivable 270 591
Lease incentives 4,740 5,035
Taxreceivables 39 -
Otherreceivables 85 -
Total receivables 12,570 11,175
The ageing of Trade receivables
is as follows:
2022 2021
€'000 €'000
Less than 6 months 7,584 3,704
Between 6 & 12 months 486 2,277
8,070 5,981
11. Cash and Cash Equivalents
2022 2021
€'000 €'000
Cash atbank 20,262 23,280
Total cash and cash equivalents 20,262 23,280
12. Leasehold Liability
2022 2021
€'000 €'000
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year
550 550
One to two years 550 550
Two to three years 550 550
Three to fouryears 550 550
Four to five years 550 550
More than five years 25,065 25,616
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 27,815 28,366
Lease liability included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet
Current 550 550
Non - current 22,087 22,355
Total lease liability included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet 22,637 22,905
On 15January 2020 the Group acquired a new logistics warehouse in Den Hoorn. The propertyis located on
land owned bythe local municipalityand leased to the Group on a perpetual basis. The Group reserves
the option to acquire the freehold ownership on 1 July 2044 for the total sum of €15,983,000. The annual
ground lease payments amount to €531,000 per annum, the presentvalue of these future payments
(assuming the option to acquire the freehold is exercised) being €22,637,000 as at 31 December 2022.
13. Trade and Other Payables
2022 2021
€'000 €'000
Rental income received in advance 4,035 1,964
Accrued acquisition and development costs 72 41
Management fee payable 1,937 931
VAT payable 1,221 643
Accruals 1,534 2,850
Trade payable 2,354 5,164
Tenantdeposits 3,853 2,873




Total payables 15,006 14,466
14.Bank Loans
2022 2021
€'000 €'000
Bank borrowings drawn 270,270 177,100
Loan issue costs paid (6,055) (1,740)
Accumulated amortisation of loan issue costs 1,317 587
Total Bank Loans 265,532 175,947
2022 2021
€'000 €'000
Maturity less than 1year - 15,500
Maturity beyond 1 year 265,532 160,447
Total payables 265,532 175,947
The above loans are secured on the following properties on a non-
recourse basis.
Fixed
Interest Rate
(Including
Loan Margin)
Property Country (€'000) Start date End date Lender
Erlensee Germany 17,800 20/02/2019 31/01/2029 DZ HYP 1.62%
Florsheim Germany 12,400 18/02/2019 30/01/2026 DZ HYP 1.54%
Avignon + Meung Sur Loire France 33,000 12/02/2019 12/02/2026 Baryern LB 1.57%
Ede/Waddinxveen + Oss Netherlands 44,200 06/06/2019 06/06/2025 Berlin Hyp 1.37%
's Heerenberg Netherlands 11,000 27/06/2019 27/06/2025 Berlin Hyp 1.13%
Zeewolde + Den Hoorn Netherlands 43,200 15/01/2020 14/01/2028 Berlin Hyp 1.40%
Coslada + Leon + Girona Spain 25,345 26/09/2022 26/09/2025 ING Bank 3.01%
Gavilanes Phase | +11 + 111 Spain 44,000 07/07/2022 07/07/2025 ING Bank 2.61%
Gavilanes Phase IV Spain 39,325 26/09/2022 26/09/2025 ING Bank 3.01%
270,270
Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities.
Bank borrowings Bank interest Financial
€'000 €'000 Derivatives
€'000 Total
€'000
Balance at 1 January 2022 175,947 326 109 176,382
Cashflows from financing activities:
Bank loans interest paid
- (3,050) - (3,050)
Bank loans drawn 154,547 - - 154,547
Bank loans repaid (65,692) - - (65,692)
Non- cash movement: -
Amortisation of capitalised borrowing costs 730 - - 730
Changes in fairvalue - - 3,600 3,600
Change in creditors forloan interest payable - 2,724 - 2,724
Balance at 31 December 2022 265,532 - 3,709 269,241
Bank borrowings Bank interest Financial
€'000 €'000 Derivatives
€'000 Total
€'000
Balance at 1 January 2021 143,331 1 26 143,358
Cashflows from financing activities:
Bank loans interest paid
- (1,311) - (1,311)
Bank loans drawn 68,860 - - 68,860
Bank loans repaid (36,500) - - (36,500)
Non- cash movement: -
Amortisation of capitalised borrowing costs 256 - - 256
Changes in fairvalue - - 83 83
Change in creditors forloan interest payable - 1,636 - 1,636
Balance at 31 December 2021 175,947 326 109 176,382
15.Derivative Financial Instruments
2022 2021
€'000 €'000



Forward foreign exchange contracts (185) 109

Interestrate swap and caps 3,894 -

3,709 109

The Company employed currency hedging to provide greater certainty as to the level of Sterling
distributions paid in respect of the year. A forward FX contract was entered into fixing the EUR: GBP
exchange rate at €1.17:£1 for the three interim distributions paid in the year, and the fourth interim
distribution paid after the yearend. The forward FXin place atyearend relates solelyto the fourth
interim distribution payable.

AELlI Madrid Logistics 1 has an agreement with ING Bank N.V for a loan facility of €44 million atan
interest rate payable of EURIBOR plus 1.15%. In order to mitigate the interestrate risk, itentered a
fixed floating interestrate swap forthe notional amount of €40 million againstan all-in fixed rate of
2.57% over the three yearloan term. The remaining €4m drawn on the loan facilityis capped at 3.0%.

AELlI Madrid Logistics 2 has an agreement with ING Bank N.V for a loan facility of €64.67 million atan
interest rate payable of EURIBOR plus 1.15%. In order to mitigate the interestrate risk, itentered a
fixed floating interestrate swap forthe notional amount of €60 million againstan all-in fixed rate of
3.01% over the three yearloan term. The remaining €4.67m drawn on the loan facilityis capped at
3.0%.

16. Share Capital

2022 2021
€'000 €'000
Opening balance 4,309 2,756
Ordinaryshares issued 408 1,553
Balance as at 31 December 4,717 4,309
Ordinary shareholders participate in all general meetings of the Company on the basis of one vote for
each share held. Each Ordinary share has equal rights to dividends and equal rights to participate in a
distribution arising from a winding up of the Company. The Ordinaryshares are notredeemable.
The Group commenced the year with 377,628 901 Ordinary shares in issue. On 2 February 2022, the Group
increased its share capital by the issue of 34,545,455 new Ordinary Shares at 110p (€1.30) pershare.
The number of Ordinaryshares in issue at 31 December 2022 was
412,174,356. The nominal value of each share is £0.01.
17. Share Premium
2022 2021
€'000 €'000
Opening balance 225,792 61,691
Premium arising on issue of new shares 44,513 166,924
Share issue costs deducted (759) (2,823)
Balance as at 31 December 269,546 225,792
The share premium arising in the year was converted to EUR using the issue date exchange rate on 2
March 2022 of 1.18213091.
2022 2021
€'000 €'000
Opening balance 178,207 185,661
Dividends paid (13,356) (7,454)
Balance as at 31 December 164,851 178,207

18.Special Distributable Reserve

At a General Meeting held on 8 November 2017, a special resolution was passed authorising, conditional
on the issue of Ordinary shares bythe Company, the amountstanding to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company followingissue to be cancelled. In order to cancel the share premium account the
Company was required to obtain a Court Order, which was received on 13 March 2018. A Statement of
Capital form was lodged at Companies House with a copy of the Court Order on 16 March 2018. With effect

from that date the amount of the share premium account cancelled was credited as a special
distributable reserve in the Company's books of account. Further details of the dividends paid from the
special distributable reserve are provided in note 8 of the parent company accounts on page 136 of the
published Annual Reportand financial statements for the yearended 31 December 2022.

19. Capital Reserves

Realised capital reserve

Unrealised gains

Total capital reserve

€'000 €'000 €'000
Opening balance (2) 63,260 63,258
Deferred taxation - 3,893 3,893
Fairvalue losses of investments - (40,432) (40,432)
Movementin fairvalue gains on derivative - 3,600 3,600
financial instruments
Currency gains during the year - 461 461
Balance as at 31 December 2022 (2) 30,782 30,780

Realised capital reserve

Realised capital reserve
)

Unrealised gains
€'000

Unrealised gains
€'000

Total capital reserve
|

Total capital reserve
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vpening vdidice \<) 34,77V S31,/00
Deferred taxation - (10,294) (10,294)
Fairvalue gains of investments - 41,031 41,031
Currency gains during the year - 753 753
Balance as at 31 December 2021 (2) 63,260 63,258
20.0Operating Segments
The Group's reportable segments are the geographical areas in which itoperates. These operating
segments reflect the components of the Group thatare regularly reviewed to allocate resources and
assess performance. All non-current assets are non-UK based.
Parent
Company
Netherlands Poland Germany France €'000
2022 €'000 €'000 €'000 Spain €'000 €'000 Total €'000
Total assets 258,324 97,947 69,431 275,129 115,160 1,792 817,783
Total liabilities 134,913 6,564 33,663 111,143 39,083 2,440 327,806
’ 677 1,501 353 1,745 1,126 8,634 14,036
Total Comprehensive return for
the year (Revenue)
Total Comprehensive return for (19,933) 3,202 (1,634) (11,337) (2,941) 165 (32,478)
the year (Capital)
Included in Total
Comprehensive Income Net
(loss)/gain from the fairvalue
adjustmenton investment
property (24,762) 3,901 (1,742) (14,635) (3,194) - (40,432)
Rental income 10,398 4,605 2,950 8,395 3,338 - 29,686
Parent
Company
Netherlands Poland  Germany France €'000
2021 €'000 €'000 €'000 Spain €'000 €'000 Total €'000
Total assets 264,155 94,100 71,571 215,789 80,725 2,046 728,386
Total liabilities 139,464 6,608 34,134 6,663 37,206 16,806 240,881
Total Comprehensive return for 2,646 (969) (578) (14) 2,110 9,758 12,953
the year (Revenue)
Total Comprehensive return for 21,436 6,607 3,655 2,814 (3,022) - 31,490
the year (Capital)
Included in Total
Comprehensive Income
Net gain/(loss) from the fair
value adjustmenton
investment property 29,636 7,708 4,580 2,319 (3,212) - 41,031
Rental income 10,368 3,634 2,846 2,306 4,129 - 23,283

21.Financial instruments and investment properties
Fair value hierarchy

IFRS 13 requires the Group to classifyits financial instruments held atfairvalue using a hierarchy that

reflects the significance of the inputs used in the valuation method

Level 1 - quoted prices in active markets foridentical investments;

Level 2 - othersignificant observable inputs (including quoted prices for similarinvestments, interest

rates, prepayments, creditrisk, etc.); and

Level 3 -significantunobservable inputs.

ologies. These are as follows:

The following tables show an analysis of the fairvalues of investment properties and derivative financial
instruments recognised in the balance sheet bylevel of the fairvalue hierarchy:

Level 1 €'000 Level 2 €000 Level 3 €'000 Total fair value
€'000
31 December 2022
Investment properties - - 776,616 776,616
Level 1 €'000 Level 2 €'000 Level 3 €'000 Total fair value
€'000
31 December 2021
Investment properties - - 683,878 683,878

The lowestlevel of inputis the underlying yields on each property which is an input not based on

observable market data.

Level 1 €'000 Level 2 €'000 Level 3 €'000 Total fair value
€'000
31 December 2022
Derivative Financial Liability - (185) - (185)
Derivative Financial Asset - 3,894 - 3,894



Level 1 €'000 Level 2 €'000 Level 3 €'000 Total fair value
€'000
31 December 2021
Derivative Financial Asset - 109 - 109

The lowestlevel of inputis EUR:GBP exchange rate for forward foreign currency contracts. The lowest
level of inputs for Interest rate SWAPs and Caps are current marketinterestrates and yield curve over
the remaining term of the instrument.

Bank Loans are measured at amortised cost. The fairvalue is estimated using discounted cash flows with
the currentinterestrates and yield curve applicable to each loan. As at 31 December 2022 the estimated
fairvalue of the Groups Bank loans is €257,449,000 (2021: €156,058,000). The amortised cost is €265,532,000
(2021: €160,447,000).

22.Risk Management

The Group's financial instruments comprise securities and otherinvestments, cash balances, loans and
debtors and creditors thatarise directly from its operations; forexample, in respect of sales and
purchases awaiting settlement, and debtors for accrued income. The Group also has the ability to enter
into derivative transactions in the form of forward foreign currency contracts, futures and options, for the
purpose of managing currency and marketrisks arising from the Group's activities. The Group also has the
ability to enterinto derivative transactions to hedge against fluctuations in the cost of borrowing as a
result of changes in interestrates.

The main risks the Group faces from its financial instruments are (a) market price risk (comprising of (i)
interestrate risk, (ii) foreign currency risk and (iii) other price risk), (b) liquidity risk and (c) credit risk.
(a) Market price risk

The fairvalue or future cash flows of a financial instrument held by the Group may fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. This marketrisk comprises three elements - interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk and other price risk.

(i) Market risk arising from interest rate risk

Interest rate movements may affect the level of income receivable on cash deposits. The possible
effects on fairvalue and cash flows that could arise as a result of changes in interestrates are taken
into account when making investmentand borrowing decisions.

Interest risk profile

The interestrate risk profile of the portfolio of financial assets and liabilities atthe year end were as
follows:

Interest rate Local currency Foreign Euro equivalent
% '000 exchange rate €'000
As at 31 December 2022
Assets:
Euro
2.00 19,371 1.00 19,371
Pound Sterling 3.50 188 0.89 212
Polish Zloty 6.25 3,152 4.69 679
Total 20,262
Interest rate Local currency Foreign Euro equivalent
% '000 exchange rate €'000
As at 31 December 2021
Assets:
Euro
(0.50) 21,994 1.00 21,994
Pound Sterling 0.25 149 0.84 177
Polish Zloty 1.25 5,080 4.60 1,109
Total 23,280

The floating rate assets consist of cash deposits on call earning interestat prevailing market rates.
An increase of 100bps in interestrates as at the reporting date would have increased the reported profit
and equity shareholders' funds by €202,560 (2021: €23,280). Other Comprehensive Income and Capital
Reserves would have been €2,480,934 (2021: N/A) higher as a resultof an increase in the fairvalue of the
derivative designated as interest rate swaps and €156,769 (2021: N/A) higher as a resultof an increase in
the fairvalue of the derivative designated as interestrate caps on floating rate borrowings.

A decrease of 100bps in interest rates would have reduced the reported profitand equity shareholders'
funds by

€202,560 (2021: €23,280). Other Comprehensive Income and the Capital Reserve would have been €2,528,315
(2021: N/A) lower as a result of a decrease in the fairvalue of the derivative designated as interestrate
swaps and €91,392 (2021: N/A) lower as a result of a decrease in the fairvalue of the derivative designated
as interestrate caps on floating rate borrowings.

Other financial assets (eg debtors) are not subject to interest rate risk.

(ii) Market risk arising from foreign currency risk

The income and capital value of the Groups investments and liabilities can be affected by exchange rate
movements as some of the Group's assets and income are denominated in currencies other than Euro
which is the Group's reporting currency.

The revenue accountis subject to currency fluctuation arising from overseas income.

Foreign currency risk profile

Foreign currency risk exposure by currency of denomination:

Net monetary exposure Total currency exposure

€'000 €'000
As at 31 December 2022
Pound Sterling 381 381
Ztoty 679 679
Total foreign currency 1,060 1,060

Euro (287,699) (287,699)




Total (286,639) (286,639)

Net monetary exposure Total currency exposure
€'000 €'000
As at 31 December 2021
Pound Sterling 332 332
Ztoty 1,109 1,109
Total foreign currency 1,441 1,441
Euro (197,814) (197,814)
Total (196,373) (196,373)

The assetallocation between specific markets can vary from time to time based on the Investment
Manager's opinion of the attractiveness of the individual markets.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in Sterling and Polish
Zloty against the Euro and the resultantimpactthatanysuch increase or decrease would have on net
return before taxand equity shareholders' funds. The sensitivityanalysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetaryitems and adjusts theirtranslation at the yearend fora 10%
change in foreign currency rates.

As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021
€'000 €'000
Zloty 68 111
Pound Sterling 38 33

(iii) Market risk arising from other price risk

Other price risks (i.e.changes in market prices otherthan those arising from interestrate or currency risk)
may affect the value of the quoted investments. The carrying amount for financial assets approximates to
the fairvalue of trade and otherreceivables (note 10) and trade and other payables (note 13).

Other price risk sensitivity

If the investment property valuation fell by 10% at 31 December 2022, the decrease in total assets and
return before tax would be €76m (2021: €66m). If the investment property valuation rose by 10% at 31
December 2022, the increase in total assets and return before tax would be €76m (2021: €66m). Exposures
vary throughout the yearas a consequence of changes in the netassets of the Group arising out of the
investment propertyand risk management processes.

(b) Liquidity risk

This is the risk that the Group will encounter difficultyin meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities. All creditors are payable within three months.

The Group's liquidity risk is managed by the Investment Manager placing cash in liquid deposits and
accounts. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounterin realising assets or otherwise raising
funds to meet financial commitments and also includes:

The level of dividends and other distributions to be paid by the Group may fluctuate and there is no
guarantee thatanysuch distributions will be paid.

The Group's targetreturns are targets onlyand are based on estimates and assumptions abouta
variety of factors all of which are beyond the Group's control and which may adversely affect the Group's
ability to make its target returns. The Group maynot be able to implementits investment policyand
strategyin a mannerthat generates dividends in line with the targetreturns or the Group's investment
objective. Liquidity risk is not considered to be significant.

(c) Credit risk
This is the risk of failure of the counterpartyto a transaction to discharge its obligations under that
transaction that could resultin the Group suffering a loss.

The risk is not considered significant by the Board, and is managed as follows:

The Group has acquired a portfolio of European logistics properties and has a number of leases with
tenants. In the event of default by a tenant, the Group will suffera rental shortfall and incur additional
costs until the propertyis re-let, including legal expenses, in maintaining, insuring and re-letting the
property. The Board receives regularreports on concentrations of risk and anytenants in arrears. The
Investment Manager monitors such reports in order to anticipate and minimise the impact of defaults by
tenants. Cash is held only with reputable financial institutions with high quality external creditratings.

None of the Group's financial assets is secured by collateral.

The maximum credit risk exposure as at 31 December 2022 was €27.7m (2021: €28.8m). This was due to
trade receivables and cash as pernotes 10 and 11.

All cash is placed with financial institutions with a creditrating of -A or above. Bankruptcy orinsolvency
may cause the Group's abilityto access cash placed on depositto be delayed orlimited. Should the
credit quality orthe financial position of the financial institutions currently employed significantly
deteriorate, the Investment Manager would move the cash holdings to another financial institution.
There are no significant concentrations of liquidity risk within the Group.

(d) Taxation and Regulation risks

The Company must comply with the provisions of the Companies Actand, as the shares are admitted to
the premium segment of the Official List, the Listing Rules and the Disclosure Guidance and
Transparency Rules. A breach of the Companies Act could resultin the Companyand/orthe Board being
fined or being the subject of criminal proceedings. Breach of the Listing Rules could resultin the shares
being suspended from listing. Legal and regulatory changes could occurthat mayadversely affect the
Company. The Company has obtained UK Investment Trust Company status. The Company must comply
with the provisions of sections 1158 and 1159 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and Part 2 Chapter 1 of
Statutory Instruments 2011/2999 to maintain this status. Breaching these regulations could resultin the
Company paying UK Corporation Tax it would otherwise be exempt from, adversely affecting the
Company's ability to pursue its investment objective.

Capital Management

The Group considers that capital comprises issued Ordinary shares and long-term borrowings. The Group's
capital is deployed in the acquisition and management of subsidiaries in line with the Group's
investment objective, specifically to provide a regularand attractive level of income return together with
the potential forlong-term income and capital growth from investing in high quality European logistics
real estate. The following investment limits and restrictions apply to the Group and its business which,
where appropriate, are measured at the time of investmentand once the Group is fullyinvested:

e the Grouo will onlvinvestin assets located in Europoe:



e no more than 50 per cent. of Gross Assets will be concentrated in a single country;
. no single asset mayrepresent more than 20 per cent. of Gross Assets;

e forward funded commitments will be wholly or predominantly pre-letand the Group's overall
exposure to forward funded commitments will be limited to 20 per cent. of Gross Assets;

e the Group's maximum exposure to anysingle developer will be limited to 20 per cent. of Gross
Assets;

e the Group will notinvestin otherclosed-ended investment companies;

e the Group mayonlyinvestin assets with tenants which have been classified by the Investment
Manager's investment process as having strong financial covenants; and

e nosingle tenantwill represent more than 20 per cent. of the Group's annual gross income
measured annually.

The Group's principal use of cash will be to fund investments in accordance with its investment policy, on-
going operational expenses and to paydividends and other distributions to shareholders, as setoutin
the Prospectus. The Group may from time to time have surplus cash (forexample, following the disposal
of an investment). Pending reinvestment of such cash, itis expected thatanysurplus cash will be
temporarilyinvested in cash equivalents, money marketinstruments, bonds, commercial paper or other
debtobligations with financial institutions or other counterparties having a single -A (or equivalent) or
highercreditrating as determined byan internationallyrecognised rating agency; or ''government and
publicsecurities' as defined for the purposes of the FCA rules.

The Group monitors capital primarily through regularfinancial reporting and also through a gearing
policy. The Group intends to use gearing with the objective of improving shareholderreturns. Debt will
typically be secured atthe assetlevel and potentiallyatthe Group level with or without a charge over
some orall of the Group's assets, depending on the optimal structure for the Group and having
consideration to key metrics including lender diversity, cost of debt, debt type and maturity profiles.
Borrowings will typically be non-recourse and secured againstindividual assets or groups of assets and
the aggregate borrowings atassetlevel will always be subjectto an absolute maximum, calculated at the
time of drawdown for a property purchase, of 50 per cent. of Gross Assets. Where borrowings are secured
againsta group of assets, such group of assets shall not exceed 25 per cent. of Gross Assets in order to
ensure thatinvestmentrisk remains suitably spread. The Board has established gearing guidelines for
the AIFM in order to maintain an appropriate level and structure of gearing within the parameters set out
above. Underthese guidelines, aggregate borrowings atassetlevel are expected to be atoraround 35 per
cent. of gross assets. The Board will keep the level of borrowings underreview and the aggregate
borrowings will always be subject to the absolute maximum setatthe time of the Group's launch,
calculated at the time of drawdown for a property purchase, of 50 per cent of Gross Assets. The fairvalue
of the Groups bank borrowings as at 31 December 2022 was €270,270,000 (2021: €164,980,000).

Contractual undiscounted maturities

All financial liabilities presented as current are payable within 3 months. The analysis of financial
liabilities is below:

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 years Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
At 31 December 2022
Bank loans 4,836 4,836 214,634 61,337 285,643
Lease liability 550 550 1,650 25,065 27,815
Derivative financial instruments 185 - - - 185
Otherliabilities 9,750 - - - 9,750
Total 15,321 5,386 216,284 86,402 323,393
Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 years Total
€'000 €'000 €'000 €'000 €'000
At 31 December 2021
Bank loans 2,372 2,299 62,096 108,585 175,352
Lease liability 550 550 1,651 25,615 28,366
Otherliabilities 11,859 - - - 11,859
Total 14,781 2,849 63,747 134,200 215,577
23. Related Party Transactions
The Company's Alternative Investment Fund Manager ('AIFM') throughout the year was abrdn Fund
Managers Limited ("aFML"). Under the terms of a Management Agreement dated 17 November 2017 the
AlIFM is appointed to provide investment managementservices, risk managementservices and general
administrative services including acting as the Company Secretary. The agreementis terminable byeither
the CompanyoraFMLon notless than 12 months' written notice.
Under the terms of the agreement portfolio managementservices are delegated byaFML to abrdn
Investments
Ireland Limited ('allLl'). The total management fees charged to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income during the year were €3,953,000 (2021: €2,756,000), of which €1,952,000 (2021:
€931,000) were payable atthe yearend. Under the terms of a Global Secretarial Agreement between aFML
and abrdn Holdings Limited (‘aHL'), companysecretarial services are provided to the Company by aHL.
A Promotional and Marketing Budget fee of £175,000 (2021: £137,000) was approved for 2022/2023 at the
November 2022 Board meeting which is payable to abrdn Investment Management Limited (‘alML').
The remuneration of Directors is detailed below. Further details on the Directors can be found on pages
75 to 77 of the published Annual Report and financial statements for the yearended 31 December 2022.
2022 2021
€'000 €'000
Caroline Gulliver 47 45
John Heawood 41 40
Tony Roper 57 57
Diane Wilde 41 40
Balance as at 31 December 186 182

Please note the above figures are all Euro, while those in the directors remuneration report are
stated in GBP. The Directors' shareholdings are detailed below.

31 December 2022 31 December 2021



urainary snares urainary snares

T Roper 102,812 92,812
CGulliver 72,500 62,500
JHeawood 60,000 50,000
D Wilde 74,375 64,375

On 4 February 2022, the Director's increased their shareholdings by: T Roper 10,000, C Gulliver 10,000, J
Heawood 10,000 and D Wilde 10,000.

24. Lease Analysis
The group leases outits investment properties under operating leases.

The future income under operating leases, based on the unexpired lease length atthe yearend was as
follows (based on total rents and excluding annual CPl adjustments).

2022 2021

€'000 €'000
Less than one year 34,087 28,027
Between one and two years 32,708 27,372
Between two and three years 31,298 26,867
Between three and fouryears 28,985 25,748
Between four and five years 27,111 24,415
More than five years 154,893 100,195
Total 309,082 232,624

There is no single tenant with annual rental income greater than 10 per cent of the Group's annual rental
income at 31 December 2022.

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. These leases
have remaining lease terms of between 1 and 26 years.

25. Post Balance Sheet Events
There were no post balance sheetevents.

26. Capital Commitments
As atthe 31 December 2022 the Group had capital commitments of €nil (2021: €73.4m).

27. Ultimate Parent Company

In the opinion of the Directors on the basis of shareholdings reviewed by them, the Company has no
immediate or ultimate controlling party.

28. Going Concern

The Group and Company meets its longer term funding and working capital requirements through a
combination of cash balances, rental income and a number of bank loans with different banks.

The Group ended the year with £20.3 million cash in hand, with the company's €70 million master
revolving credit facility undrawn, €3.3m of which is committed and available on request to coveranyshort
term liquidity gaps.

As detailed in Note 14, there are currently eight bank facilities, none of which are due to expire before
June 2025. Under the terms of the debt agreements, each debt obligation is "ring fenced" within a sub-
group of property holding companies. These non-recourse loans range in maturities between 2.5and 6.1
years with all-in interestrates ranging between 1.10% and 3.01% perannum. All debts have a fixed rate or
fixed rate nature by entering into interest rate SWAPs and caps to manage exposure to potential interest
rate fluctuations.

The permitted loan-to-value ratios in the debtarrangements as at 31 December 2022 are between 45% and
65%.

The "hard breach" loan-to-value ratio covenants which give the lenders to right to exercise their security
are between 55% and 65%. If the lenders were to adopt the valuations carried out for the purposes of
these financial statements as at 31 December 2022, the ratios would be between 32% and 52%. As at 31st
December 2022, there was no breach of loan-to-value ratio covenants.

The permitted interest coverage ratios in the debtarrangements as at 31 December 2022 are between
200% and 300%. The "hard breach" interest coverage ratio covenants, which give the lenders to right to
exercise theirsecurityare between 200% and 300%. The latest calculated interest coverage ratios were
between 241% and 1033%. As at 31st December 2022, there was no breach of interest coverage ratios.

The Board recognises the 35% share price discountto NAV, as at 31 December2022. The valuation of
investment propertyis the main driver of the NAV, and was determined by Savills as independentvaluer.
The Board is satisfied that the valuation exercise was performed in accordance with RICS Valuation -
Global Standards. As such, the Board has full confidence in the level of the NAV disclosed in the financial
statements atthe reporting date.

The Russian invasion of Ukraine has not materiallyimpacted the Groups portfolio. The Group has no
assets orexposure to Russia or Ukraine but the potential impact of contagion in the European and Global
economy could, however, impact the Group through a reduction in rental income, reduction in investment
property valuation and increased costs. The Directors note that the real estate values have declined in the
latter part of 2022 and in the eventthat the real estate market deteriorates and valuations fall further,
certain loan-to-value ratio levels would rise closer to permitted ratio levels. However, the Directors
consider this will have no impact on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern because:

.The Directors considerthatin all cases there is sufficient or good headroom on covenant ratios.
.The Group has a substantial cash balance, with the abilityto increase those amounts further with
certain mitigating actions.

.The Group has substantial unsecured properties

.aELl, the parentcompany, is notitself a party to any of the debt contracts (in anycapacityincluding as

borrower, guarantor or security provider). The lenders would therefore not, in any event, have anyrecourse
to the ultimate parentunderthe debt contracts.

The Company has prepared cash flow forecasts which reflect these potential impacts, including severe but
plausible downside scenarios taking into account specifictenantrisks. The scenarios model reduced
rental income through to 2023 and the worst case model equates to an overall 40% reduction of rental



income perannum overthat period. The impact of reductions in rental income and increased costs in
these scenarios could be mitigated through a reduction in dividends to shareholders if considered
necessary by the Board.

While the Companycannot predict with any certainty the full potential impact of these ongoing
unpredictable political events, the financial forecasts prepared, including the downside scenarios,
indicate thatthe Companycan continue to operate as a going concern and meetits liabilities as they fall
due.

While the Companyis obliged underits articles to hold a continuation vote at the 2024 AGM, the Directors
are unaware of anyshareholderintentions to vote againstsuch a resolution. Accordingly, the Directors
have a reasonable expectation thatthe Company will be able to continue as a going concern and meetits
liabilities as theyfall due fora period of atleast 12 months from the date of this report.

EPRA Financial Reporting (Unaudited)

Prepared in accordance with EPRA best practice recommendations (BPR) February 2022.

EPRA Performance Measures

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Total Total
A. EPRA earnings (€'000) 14,497 15,176
A.EPRA earnings pershare (cents) 3.54 5.27
B. EPRA Net Tangible Assets ("NTA") (€'000) 517,159 515,177
B. EPRA NTA pershare (cents) 125.47 136.40
C. EPRA Net Reinstatement Value ("NRV") (€'000) 553,744 551,283
C. EPRA NRV pershare (cents) 134.35 145.99
D. EPRA Net Disposal Value ("NDV")(€'000) 498,060 491,894
D. EPRA NDV pershare (cents) 120.84 130.26
E. EPRA Net Initial Yield 3.96% 3.93%
E. EPRA topped-up Net Initial Yield 4.06% 4.02%
F. EPRA Vacancy Rate 3.61% 0.00%
G. EPRA Cost Ratios - including direct vacancy costs 32.02% 29.00%
G. EPRA Cost Ratios - excluding direct vacancy costs 30.96% 29.00%
H. EPRA Capital Expenditure (€m) 133,170 194,429
I. EPRA Like for Like Rental Growth 4.99% 1.30%
|. EPRA LTV 34.57% 24.80%
A. EPRA Earnings (€000)
Earnings per IFRS income statement
(18,442) 44,443
Adjustments to calculate EPRA Earnings, exclude: -
Net changes in value of investment properties 40,432 (41,031)
Deferred tax (3,893) 11,847
Changes in fairvalue of financial instruments EPRA (3,600) (83)
Earnings
14,497 15,176
Weighted average basic number of shares ('000) 408,956 288,115
EPRA Earnings per share (cents per share) 3.54 5.27
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Total Total
B. EPRA Net Tangible Assets ("NTA") (€'000) IFRS
NAV
489,977 487,505
Exclude:
Fairvalue of financial instruments
3,709 109
Deferred taxin relation to fairvalue gains of Investment 23,473 27,563
Property
517,159 515,177
Shares inissue atend of year ('000) 412,174 377,629
EPRA NAV per share (cents per share) 125.47 136.40
C.
EPRA Net Reinstatement Value ("NRV") (€'000)
EPRA NTA 517,159 515,177
Real Estate Transfer Tax and other purchasers' costs EPRA 36,585 36,106
NRV
553,744 551,283
EPRA NRV per share (cents per share) 134.35 145.99



EPRA Net Disposal Value ("NDV") (€'000)
IFRS NAV

FairValue adjustment for Fixed Interest Debt EPRA
NDV

EPRA NDV per share (cents per share)

EPRA Net Initial Yield and 'topped up' NIY disclosure (€'000)
Investment property - wholly owned

Less developments

Completed property portfolio

Allowance for estimated purchasers' costs

Gross up completed property portfolio valuation
Annualised cash passing rental income

Property outgoings
Annualised net rents

Add: notional rent expiration of rent free periods or other
lease incentives

Topped-up net annualised rent
EPRA NIY

EPRA "topped-up" NIY

489,977 487,505
8,083 4,389
498,060 491,894
120.84 130.26
758,719 666,008
758,719 666,008
36,585 36,106
795,304 702,114
33,994 29,445
(2,501) (1,851)
31,493 27,594
778 600
32,271 28,194
3.96% 3.93%
4.06% 4.02%

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

Total Total
EPRA Vacancy Rate
Estimated rental value of vacant space

1,270 -
Estimated rental value of whole portfolio 35,176 29,908
EPRA Vacancy Rate 3.61% 0%
EPRA Cost Ratios (€'000)
Administrative / property operating expense line per IFRS
income statement 15,743 10,148
Net service charge costs / fees (6,237) (3,435)
EPRA Costs (including direct vacancy costs) 9,506 6,713
Direct vacancy costs (315) -
EPRA Costs (excluding direct vacancy costs) 9,191 6,713
Gross Rental income - per IFRS 29,686 23,283
EPRA Cost Ratio (including direct vacancy costs) 32.02% 29.00%
EPRA Cost Ratio (excluding direct vacancy costs) 30.96% 29.00%
Overhead and operating expenses capitalised - -
Property-related CapEx for the Group
Acquisitions 132,754 194,104
Investment Properties:
Non incremental Lettable Space

416 -

Incremental Lettable Space - 325
Total CapEx

133,170 194,429
Conversion from accrual to cash basis 353 (954)
Total CapEx on cash basis

133,523 193,475
Like For Like Rental Growth
Rental income growth: Germany 10.25% (1.50%)
Poland 7.55% 2.20%
France 4.86% 0.00%
Spain 2.40% 0.30%
Netherlands 4.16% 2.30%

4.99% 1.30%



31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Total Total
Rental income total* (€'000):
Germany
3,239 2,938
Poland 5,434 5,052
France 2,612 2,491
Spain 7,597 7,419
Netherlands 10,973 10,536
29,855 28,436
* Calculated based on lease agreements as at the reporting date.
Total portfolio value on which the like-for-like rental
growth is based** (€'000):
Germany
68,170 70,000
Poland 93,600 90,000
France 73,600 74,500
Spain 186,430 196,708
Netherlands 216,800 234,800
638,600 666,008
** Excludes investment properties acquired during the year with 31 December 2022 valuation of
€120,119,000.
EPRA LTV (€'000)
Borrowings from Financial Institutions 270,270 177,100
Net payables 15,006 14,466
Exclude:
Cash and cash Equivalents
Net Debt (a) (20,262) (23,280)
265,014 168,286
Investment properties at fairvalue 758,719 666,008
Netreceivables (excluding lease incentives) Total 7,829 13,106
Property Value (b)
766,548 679,114
LTV (a/b) 34.57% 24.80%

Corporate Information
Alternative Investment Fund Managers
Directive Disclosures (Unaudited

abrdn Fund Managers Limited and the Companyare required to make certain disclosures available to
investors in accordance with the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive ('AIFMD'). Those
disclosures thatare required to be made pre-investmentare included within a pre-investment disclosure
document ('PIDD') which can be found on the Company's website eurologisticsincome.co.uk. There have been
no material changes to the disclosures contained within the PIDD since its last publication in November
2022.

The periodic disclosures as required under the AIFMD to investors are made below:

.Information on the investment strategy, geographicand sectorinvestment focus and principal stock
exposures are included in the Strategic Report.

.None of the Company's assets are subject to special arrangements arising from theirilliquid nature.

.The Strategic Report, note 22 to the Financial Statements and the PIDD togetherset out the risk profile
and risk managementsystems in place. There have been no changes to the risk managementsystems in
place in the period underreview and no breaches of any of the risk limits set, with no breach expected.

.There are no new arrangements for managing the liquidity of the Companyorany material changes to
the liquidity managementsystems and procedures employed by aFML.

. All authorised Alternative Investment Fund Managers are required to comply with the AIFMD
Remuneration Code. In accordance with the Remuneration Code, the Company's AIFM remuneration
policyis available from the Company Secretaries, abrdn Holdings Limited on request (see contact
details on page 143 of the published Annual Reportand financial statements for the yearended 31
December 2022) and the numerical remuneration in the disclosures in respect of the AIFM's reporting
period forthe yearended 31 December 2022 are available on the Company's website.

Leverage
The table below sets out the current maximum permitted limitand actual level of leverage for the
Company:
Gross Commitment
method method

Maximum level of leverage 365.0% 185.0%



http://eurologisticsincome.co.uk/

Actual level at 154.8% 154.8%
31 December 2022

There have been no breaches of the maximum level during the period and no changes to the maximum
level of leverage employed by the Company. There is no right of re-use of collateral oranyguarantees
granted under the leveraging arrangement. Changes to the information contained either within this
Annual Reportorthe PIDD in relation to anyspecial arrangements in place, the maximum level of
leverage which aFML mayemployon behalf of the Company; the right of use of collateral oranyguarantee
granted underanyleveraging arrangement; oranychange to the position in relation to anydischarge of
liability by the Depositary will be notified via a regulatory news service without undue delayin
accordance with the AIFMD.

The information above has been approved for the purposes of Section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (as
amended by the Financial Services Act 2012) by abrdn Fund Managers Limited which is authorised and regulated by the

Financial Conduct Authority

The Annual Financial Report Announcementis notthe Company's statutory accounts. The above results for the
yearended 31 December 2022 are an abridged version of the Company's full Annual Reportand financial
statements, which have been approved and audited with an unqualified reportand did notinclude any
reference to matters to which the auditor drew attention by way of emphasis without qualifying the report, and

did not contain a statementunder s.498 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Annual Report will be posted to shareholders in early May 2023 and additional copies will be available

from the registered office of the Companyand on the Company's website, eurologisticsincome.co.uk*

Please note that past performance is not necessarily a guide to the future and that the value of investments and the income
from them may fall as well as rise and may be affected by exchange rate movements. Investors may not get back the

amount they originally invested.

*Neither the content of the Company's website nor the content of any website accessible from hyperlinks on the Company's
website (or any other website) is (or is deemed to be) incorporated into, or forms (or is deemed to form) part of this

announcement.

L The Audit fee above reflects 2022 audit fee of €252,000 (2021:€218,400) and Subsidiary audit fees of €12,000 (2021:€12,790). The non-audit
services fees incurred in 2022 were £20,000 (2021:£45,000) and are included in the shareissue costs in note 17.

This information is provided by RNS, the news senice of the London Stock Exchange. RNS is approved by the Financial Conduct Authority to act as a
Primary Information Provider in the United Kingdom. Terms and conditions relating to the use and distribution of this information may apply. For further
information, please contact ms@lseg.com or visit www.ms.com.

RNS may use your IP address to confirm compliance with the terms and conditions, to analyse how you engage with the information contained in this
communication, and to share such analysis on an anonymised basis with others as part of our commercial senices. For further information about how
RNS and the London Stock Exchange use the personal data you provide us, please see our Privacy Policy.
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